
BEMT was formed to acquire diversified portfolio of real

estate and real estate-related investments with primary

focus on well-located institutional quality apai

properties with strong and stable cash flows
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Looking back 2010 represents the start of solid foundation for the Bluerock Enhanced

Multifamily Trust We made much progress in our first full year of operations and passed

number of significant milestones including the following

We acquired interests in four additional multifamily properties in 2010 bringing our total

portfolio to five distinct properties with ownership interests in total of 1323 units located

five geographic markets having total portfolio value of more than $137 million

We achieved strong operating performance in our portfolio due to the successful execution

of our business plan we ended the year with 95% portfolio occupancy

in

We achieved strong quarter-over-quarter revenue growth in each period in 2010 We expect

the results to be reflected in our bottom line performance as we achieve and grow beyond

critical mass

We upgraded to the Big Four accounting firm of KPMG LLP This step was part of our continuing

commitment to ensure the highest possible levels of transparency oversight and accounting

guidance tp our investors and stakeholders

We ly implemented our strategy of partnering with leading local/institutional operating

capital alongside ours in our investments This strategy provides you

invest with eading local/institutional multifamily operators nationally
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Portfolio Snapshot

multifamily properties

1323 units

1.2 million square feet

Portfolio Detail

JRE
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-t Creekside

located in Chattanooga TN

Pictured at left

The Gardens at Hilisboro Village

located in Nashville TN

Springhouse at Newport News

located in Newport News VA

$137.8 million in total purchase price

Combined 95% aggregate average portfolio occupancy rate
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Newport News VA $29.25M 432 92%

Chattanooga TN $14.25M 192 97%

chapel Hill NC $36.96M 258 92%

Augusta GA $24.95M 240 90%

Nashville TN $32.39M 201 96%

$137.80M 1323 95%

Property acquisition price excludes scquisition fees and closing costs and includes joint venture equity ownership

Portfolio Geographic Diversification

Dec 2009

Mar 2010

Apr 2010

Sep 2010

Sep 2010

TOTAL

Springhouse at Newport News

The Reserve at Creekside Village

The Apartments at Meadowmont

The Estates at Perimeter

Gardens at Hilisboro

37.5%

23.3%

16.2%

25.0%

12.5%

Pictured above

Estates at Perimeter located in Augusta GA

Attractive Financing Terms
BEMT has obtained attractive financing for its investments with weighted

average fixed annual interest rate of approximately 4.89% with varyipg loan

maturity dates ranging from seven to 4Q years These fixed rate first mortgage

loans have been secured from Freddie Mac Fannie Mae and HUD
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OiJr Operating Partners

An Alignment of Interest Based on Property Performance

BEMTs strategy is to acquire ownership interests in multifamily properties in conjunction with its network of leading apartment

owner/operators across the nation each of whom is expected to contribute meaningful investment capital alongside our investors

Each property acquisition to date has been made in conjunction with operating partners bringing significant value in terms of

specialized expertise market knowledge relationships and with day-to-day property management services We believe this

approach creates potential for enhanced acquisition opportunities and improved operating results with strong alignment of

interest with our investors

Our co-Investment Operating Partners to-date include

Bell Partners The 10th largest national apartment operator in the U.S.1 with approximately 60000
units under management and portfolio valued at more than $5 billion

Hawthorne Residential senior management team with over 75 years of apartment industry

experience including having managed 58000 apartment units located throughout the country

Ranking provided by the National Multi-Rousing council as of 2010

2011 Multifamily Outlook

According to the Marcus Millchap 2011 National Apartment

Report the Report The U.S economy will add million jobs

in 2011 double the amount created in 2010 All 44 major

markets will post employment growth vacancy declines and

effective rent gains in 2011 confirming sweeping recovery

and expansion in the U.S apartment sector above expectations

According to the Report 2011 will mark the first across-the-board

reduction in vacancy since at least 1990 driven by the release of

pent-up demand in the aftermath of the Great Recession lower

turnover rates falling homeownership and job growth Apartment

completions are expected to total mere 53000 units this year

46% fewer than delivered in 2010 New supply is expected to again fall critically short of demand which is expected to reach

158000 units As result U.S apartment vacancies are expected to decrease 110 basiâ points in 2011 to 5.8 percent

Further apàrtrrent owners are expected to benefit from private-sector job growth in the critical 20- to 34-year-old age group

expiration of the homebuyer tax credit displaced foreclosed homeowners entering the renter pool immigration and lower unit

turnover Renting also is expected to become lifestyle and economic choice for many households as the effects of the housing

collapse and recession in some areas continue to persist according to the Report

Financial Operations Summary
We are pleased with the operating results of our current portfolio Our overall financial performance for fiscal year 2010

included capturing the highly concentrated costs of operating public company and is typical for companies in the early stage

ooe ns we continue to raise equity and add hive nnts to our portfolio our investors should ee substantial changes

ts In -ort ôfther wts -- has c-------1 our --tof certain fees and reimbursethents

mei reirr

BELLPARTNERS

hawthorne
RSIDENTIAL FPTNERS

TRADE
ST FE

CAPITA

Trade Street Capital senior management team with over 60 years of real estate experience

including transactions in excess of $5 billion with approximately 5900 multifamily units currently

under management
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As projected each of the individual properties in BEMT portfolio cdntributed substantial positiie net operating income NOl for

2010 with combined total NOl of approximately $5.9 million As result of the high level of operating success our portfolios

debt service coverage ratio was approximately 1.64 This performance is result of combination of the attractive long-term

fixed-rate financing secured at acquisition and our operating partners ability to maintain high occupancy levels throughout

the year

Below is summary of the individual contributing property operating performance

Summary of Net Operating Income

Property Operating Results

Rental revenue $3881600 $1423900 $2866300 $931900 $806700 $9910400

Operating expenses 1747500 690100 1005300 338800 261000 4042700

Net Operating Income NOl1 2134100 733800 1861000 593100 545700 5867700

Interest Expense 1342900 567100 1173100 258500 239500 3581100

income after Debt Service $791200 $166700 $687900 $334660 $306200 $2286600

Debt Service Coverage Ratio 1.59 1.29 1.59 2.29 2.28 1.64

Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures was approximately $1.1 million for year end 12/31/2010 Please see page 12 of attached

10-K filing for reconciliation of net loss to our net operating income

We evaluate the performance of our properties based upon NOl which is non-Generally Accepted Accounting Principle GAAP supplemental financial

measure We use NOl to evaluate the operating performance of our real estate and to make decisions concerning the operation of the property We believe that

NOl is essential to the investor in understanding the value ofjncome-producing real estate Net Income is the GAAP measure that is most directly comparable to

NOl however NOl should noi be considered as an alternative to net income as the primary indicator of operating performance as it excludes certain items such

as depreciation and amortization interest expense and corporate general and administrative expenses Additionally NOI as defined by us may not be compa
rable to other REITs or companies as their definitions of NOl may differ from our definition

Financial Performance and Information

copy of BEMTs Annual Report on Form 10-K filed With the Securities and Exchange Commission is available Without charge

at www.sec.gov or by written request to the Company at its corporate headquarters

Forward Looking Statements

This report contains certain forward-looking statements under Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended and

Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended with respect to portfolio diversification occupancy rates

acquisition stfategy and performance revenue growth and financial improvements the multifamily sector managements

beliefs and our dbt service coverage Forward-looking statements are statements that are not historical including statements

regarding managements intentions beliefs expectations representations plans or predictions of the future and are typically

identified by such words as believe expect anticipate intend estimate may will should and could Because

such statements include risks uncertainties and contingencies actual results may differ materially from those expressed or

implied by such forward-looking statements These risks uncertainties and contingencies include but are not limited to the

following the financial performance of the properties the successful occupancy of the properties uncertainties relating to

changes in general economic and real estate conditions the uncertainties relating to the implementation of our real estate

investment strategy and other risk factors as outlined in BEMTs prospectus as amended from time to time and as detailed

from time to time in our periodic reports as filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission Forward-looking statements in

this document speak only as of the date on which such statements were made and we undertake no obligation to update any

sUch stE ments that may become untrue because of subsequent events We claim the safe harbor protection for forward-

looking cpntained in the Private Securities Litigation Reform Act of 1995
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As Independent Directors of Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc BEMT we have reviewed the

policies being followed by BEMI and believe they are in the best interest of its stockholders The basis

for this conclusion is outlined below in the analysis of the policies in place

BEMT has developed system of policies and procedures designed to enable the objectives of BEMI

as discussed in the prospectus for its ongoing public offering to be achieved These policies cover

among other things investments in properties administration and raising capital

Acquisition and Investment Policies

We focus our investment efforts on acquiring diversified

portfolio of real estate and real estate-related invest

ments with primary focus on well-located institutional

quality apartment properties with strong and stable cash

flows We intend to implement our advisors Enhanced

Multifamily strategy at these properties which we believe

will increase rents tenant retention and property values

and generate attractive returns for our investors We

intend to allocate approximately 50% of our portfolio to

these investments

We also intend to acquire well-located residential proper

ties that we believe present significant opportunities for

short-term capital appreciation such as those requiring

repositioning renovation or redevelopment and proper

ties available at opportunistic prices from distressed or

time-constrained sellers As appropriate we intend to

implement Enhanced Multifamily strategies at these

properties as well We intend to allocate approximately

30% of our portfolio to these investments

In addition we will seek to originate or invest in real

estate-related securities that we believe present the

potential for high current income or total return including

but not limited to mortgage bridge or subordinated loans

debt securities and preferred or other equity securities of

other real estate companies which we refer to as real

estate-related investments and may invest in entities that

make similar investments We intend to allocate approxi

mately 20% of our portfolio to these investments

Although the percentages above represent our target

portfolio we may make adjustments based on among

other things prevailing real estate market conditions and

the availability of attractive investments opportunities

We will not forego an attractive investment because it

does not fit within our targeted asset class or portfolio

composition

When considering an investment we will generally

evaluate the following

F- the performance and risk characteristics of

that investment

how that investment will fit within our target portfolio

objectives and

the expected returns of that investment on

risk-adjusted basis relative to other investment

alternatives

As such our actual portfolio composition may vary

substantially from the target portfolio described above

One of the critical elements of our investment process is

the identification of uniquely qualified specialized top-tier

real estate local operating partners who bring significant

value in terms of specialized expertise market knowledge

relationships and execution to the transaction To that

end and consistent with these policies we have entered

into five joint ventures with third parties including

affiliates of its advisor for the acquisition development

improvement and operation of institutional quality apart

ment properties We believe that there are sufficient

acquisition opportunities that meet our investment focus

and that our current acquisition and investment policies

continue to be best interests of our stock holders

Borrowing Policy

There is no limitation on the amount we may borrow for

the purchase of any single property or other investment

Our charter limits our borrowings to 300% of net assets

however we may exceed that limit if majority of our

Independent Directors approves each borrowing in excess

of our charter limitation We expect that once we have

fully invested the proceeds of our ongoing public offering

our debt financing will be approximately 50% of the cost

of our real estate investments before deducting deprecia

tion or other non-cash reserves plus the value of our
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other assets We review the aggregate borrowings at least

quarterly As of December 31 2010 we were in excess of

the leverage limitation imposed by our charter We have

reviewed the borrowings of SEMI and find the loans to be

fair competitive and commercially reasonable and no less

favorable to SEMI than loans between unaffiliated parties

under the same circumstances and furthermore

expressly find substantial justification to exceed the

leverage limitation imposed by our charter

Cost of Raising Capital

In accordance with the Statement of Policy Regarding Real

Estate Investment Irusts published by the North American

Securities Administrators Association the NASAA REII

Guidelines our charter requires that we report to our

stockholders annually the ratio of the costs of raising

capital during the year to the capital raised For the year

ended December 31 2010 we raised total capital in our

ongoing public offering of approximately $6.2 million and

incurred costs of approximately $1.4 million in connection

with raising this capital Ihis equates to ratio of 22.6%

Policy Regarding Operating Expenses
In accordance with the NASAA REII Guidelines our

charter also requires that we monitor our total operating

expenses quarterly on trailing twelve-month basis We
limit total operating expenses to the greater of 2% of the

average invested assets or 25% of net income unless the

Board of Directors including the Independent Directors

determines that such excess expenses were justified

based on unusual and non-recurring factors For the year

ended December 31 2010 our total operating expenses

stated as percentage of average invested assets was

approximately 327% and we had net loss for 2010 On

March 22 2011 we reviewed the ratios of SEMIs Iotal

Operating Expenses to BEMIs average invested assets for

the four fiscal quarters ended December 31 2009 and
the four fiscal quarters ended each quarter thereafter

through March 31 2011 and determined that the excess

amount for each such four-quarter period was justified

because we are in our development stage

SEMI was formed on July 25 2008 and we accepted our

first investors under the initial public offering on May 20
2010 We have equity investments in five joint ventures

and our investments in the joint ventures are included on

our balance sheet however the assets of the joint

ventures are not included on our balance sheet and this

contributed to the expenses incurred in connection with

our organization and the expenses of being public

company audit and legal services director and officer

liability insurance and fees and expenses for Board

members in connection with service on the Board and its

committees being disproportionately high as compared

to our average invested assets

Transactions with Related Parties

We have reviewed SEMIs Annual Report on Form 10-K

and the related party transactions as outlined in Note to

the Consolidated Financial Statements and in our

opinion the related party transactions are fair and

reasonable to SEMI and its stockholders Ihe terms of

such transactions are not less favorable to SEMI than

those available from unaffiliated third parties
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Proxy Statement and

Notice of 2011 Annual Meeting of Stockholders

Dear Stockholder

On Monday August 2011 we will hold our 2011 annual meeting of stockholders at Club Quarters

Hotel 25 West 5Vt Street New York NY 10019 The meeting will begin at 1200 pm Eastern

Standard Time Directions to the meeting can be obtained by calling 1-888-558-1031

We are holding this meeting to

Elect five directors to hold office for one-year terms expiring in 2012

The Board of Directors recommends vote FOR each nominee

Attend to such other business as may properly come before the meeting and any

adjournment or postponement thereof

Your board of directors has selected June 10 2011 as the record date for determining stockholders

entitled to vote at the meeting

This proxy statement and proxy card is being mailed to you on or about June 212011

Whether or not you plan to attend the meeting and vote in person we urge you to have your vote

recorded as early as possible Stockholders can submit their votes by proxy by mailing the

enclosed proxy card

YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT Your immediate response will help avoid potential

delays and may save us significant additional expenses associated with soliciting stockholder

votes

By Order of the Board of Directors

Rçimin Kamfar

Chaiman

New York New York

June 212011



QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS ABOUT THE MEETING AND VOTING

Why did you send me this proxy statement

We sent you this proxy statement and the enclosed proxy card because our board of directors is

soliciting your proxy to vote your shares at the 2011 annual stockholders meeting This proxy

statement includes information that is designed to assist you in voting

What is proxy

proxy is person who votes the shares of stock of another person who could not attend meeting

The term proxy also refers to the proxy card or other method of appointing proxy When you
submit your proxy you are appointing Ramin Kamfar and Jerold Novak each of whom are our

officers as your proxies and you are giving them permission to vote your shares of common stock at

the annual meeting The appointed proxies will vote your shares of common stock as you instruct

unless you submit your proxy without instructions In this case they will vote FOR all of the

director nominees With respect to any other proposals to be voted upon they will vote in

accordance with the recommendation of the board of directors or in the absence of such

recommendation in their discretion If you do not submit your proxy they will not vote your shares

of common stock This is why it is important for you to return the proxy card to us as soon as

possible whether or not you plan on attending the meeting

When is the annual meeting and where will it be held

The annual meeting will be held on Monday August 82011 at 1200 pm Eastern Standard Time at

Club Quarters Hotel 25 West 51st Street New York NY 10019

Who is entitled to vote

Anyone who owned our common stock at the close of business on June 102011 the record date is

entitled to vote at the annual meeting

How many shares of common stock are outstanding

As of June 10 2011 there were 789839 shares of our common stock outstanding and entitled to

vote

What constitutes quorum

quorum consists of the presence in person or by proxy of stockholders holding majority of the

outstanding shares There must be quorum present in order for the annual meeting to be duly

held meeting at which business can be conducted If you submit your proxy even if you abstain

from voting then you will at least be considered part of the quorum



How many votes do have

You are entitled to one vote for each share of common stock you held as of the record date

What may vote on

You may vote on the election of nominees to serve on the board of directors and on any other

proposal properly brought before the annual meeting

How does the board of directors reconunend vote on the proposal

The board of directors recommends vote FOR each of the nominees for election as director who are

named in this proxy statement

How can vote

You can vote in person at the meeting or by proxy Stockholders may submit their votes by proxy by

completing signing dating and returning by mail the enclosed proxy card

If you elect to attend the meeting you can submit your vote in person and any previous votes that

you submitted by mail will be superseded

What if submit my proxy and then change my mind

You have the right to revoke your proxy at any time before the meeting by

notifying Michael Konig our Secretary

attending the meeting and voting in person or

returning another proxy card dated after your first proxy card if we receive it before the annual

meeting date

Only the most recent proxy vote will be counted and all others will be discarded regardless of the

method of voting

Will my vote make difference

Yes Your vote could affect the composition of our board of directors Moreover your vote is

needed to ensure that the proposal can be acted upon Because we are widely held company
YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT Your immediate response will help avoid potential

delays and may save us significant additional expenses associated with soliciting stockholder

votes



What are the voting requirements to elect the board of directors

Under our charter majority of the votes present in person or by proxy at the meeting is required for

the election of the directors This means that director nominee needs to receive more votes for his

or her election than against his or her election in order to be elected to the board Because of this

majority vote requirement withhold votes and broker non-votes will have the effect of vote

against each nominee for director If an incumbent director nominee fails to receive the required

number of votes for reelection then under Maryland law he or she will continue to serve as

holdover director until his or her successor is duly elected and qualified

What is broker non-vote

broker non-vote occurs when broker holding stock on behalf of beneficial owner submits

proxy but does not vote on non-routine proposal because the broker does not have discretionary

power with respect to that item and has not received instructions from the beneficial owner On July

2009 the SEC eliminated the ability of brokers to exercise discretionary voting in uncontested

director elections at stockholder meetings that are held on or after January 2010 The change

prohibits brokers from giving proxy to vote with respect to an election of directors without

receiving voting instructions from beneficial owner Beneficial owners of shares held in broker

accounts are advised that if they do not timely provide instructions to their broker their shares will

not be voted in connection with the election of directors at our annual meeting

How will voting on any other business be conducted

Although we do not know of any business to be considered at the annual meeting other than the

election of directors if any other business is properly presented at the annual meeting your

submitted proxy gives authority to Ramin Kamfar and Jerold Novak and each of them to vote

on such matters in accordance with the recommendation of the board of directors or in the absence

of such recommendation in their discretion

When are the stockholder proposals for the next annual meeting of stockholders due

Stockholders interested in nominating person as director or presenting any other business for

consideration at our annual meeting of stockholders in 2012 may do so by following the procedures

prescribed in Article II Section 11 of our Bylaws To be eligible for presentation to and action by

the stockholders at the 2012 annual meeting director nominations and other stockholder proposals

must be received by Michael Konig our Secretary no earlier than January 232012 and no later

than February 222012

Who pays the cost of this proxy solicitation

We will pay all of the costs of soliciting these proxies We will also reimburse brokerage houses and

other custodians nominees and fiduciaries for their reasonable out-of-pocket expenses for

forwarding proxy and solicitation materials to our stockholders



Is this proxy statement the only way that proxies are being solicited

No In addition to mailing proxy solicitation material our directors and employees of the Advisor or

its affiliates as well as third-party proxy service companies we retain may also solicit proxies in

person via the internet by telephone or by any other electronic means of communication we deem

appropriate We currently have no arrangements with paid solicitors

Where can find more information

We file annual quarterly and current reports and other information with the SEC You may read and

copy any reports or other information we file with the SEC on the web site maintained by the SEC at

http//www.sec.gov Our SEC filings are also available to the public at the SECs Public Reference

Room located at 100 Street N.E Washington DC 20549 You may also obtain copies of the

documents at prescribed rates by writing to the Public Reference Section of the SEC at 100 Street

N.E Washington DC 20549 Please call the SEC at -800-SEC-0330 for further information

regarding the public reference facilities



CERTAIN INFORMATION ABOUT OUR DIRECTORS

We have provided below certain information about our directors All of our directors have terms

expiring on the date of the 2011 annual meeting and are being nominated for re-election to serve until the

2012 annual meeting and until his successor is elected and qualified

Year First

Became

_________________________ ___________________________________ Age Director

41 2008

2008

Ramin Kamfar Chairman of the Board Mr Kamfar serves as our Chairman of the Board and

Chief Executive Officer and is the Chief Executive Officer of our advisor He has also served as the

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of our sponsor Bluerock Real Estate LLC Bluerock since its

inception in October 2002 Mr Kamfar has approximately 20 years of experience in building operating

companies and in various aspects of real estate mergers and acquisitions private equity investing

investment banking public and private financings and retail operations

From 1988 to 1993 Mr Kamfar worked as an investment banker at Lehman Brothers Inc New

York New York where he specialized in mergers and acquisitions corporate finance and private

placements From 1993 to 2002 Mr Kamfar was the CEO and Chairman of New World Restaurant

Group Inc now known as Einstein Noah Restaurant Group Inc NASDAQ BAGL company he

founded and grew through consolidation and turnaround of several companies to approximately 800

locations and $400 million in gross revenues and portfolio of brands which included Einstein Bros

and Noahs NY Bagels From 1999 to 2002 Mr Kamfar served as an active investor advisor and

member of the Board of Directors of Vsource Inc technology company subsequently sold to

Symphony House KL SYMPHNY leading business process outsourcing company focused on the

Fortune 500 and Global 500 Mr Kamfar received an M.B .A degree with distinction in Finance in 1988

from The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania located in Philadelphia Pennsylvania and

.S degree with distinction in Finance in 1985 from the University of Maryland located in College Park

Maryland

Mr Kamfar who controls our sponsor was chosen to serve as the Chairman of the Board

because as our Chief Executive Officer Mr Kamfar is well positioned to provide essential insight and

guiaance to the board from the inside perspective of the day-to-day operations of the company
Furthermore Mr Kamfar brings to the board approximately 20 years of experience in building operating

companies and in various aspects of real estate mergers and acquisitions private equity investing public

and private financings and retail operations His experience with complex financial and operational

issues in the real estate industry as well as his strong leadership ability and business acumen make him

critical to proper functioning of our board

James Babb ifi Director Mr Babb serves as our President and Chief Investment Officer and

is on our Board of Directors and is the President and Chief Investment Officer of our advisor Mr Babb

is also the Managing Director and Chief Investment Officer of Bluerock which he joined in July 2007

He oversees all real estate sourcing diligence structuring and acquisitions for Bluerock He has been

involved exclusively in real estate acquisition management financing and disposition for more than 20

years primarily on behalf of investment funds since 1992

Name Positions

it Ramin Kainfar

James Babb ifi

C1iairmattof the Board

Director 46

Bjan Bailey Independent Directqr 45 2009

Bobby Majumder Independent Director 42 2009

Romano Tb Independent Director 51/ t09



From 1992 to August 2003 Mr Babb helped lead the residential and office acquisitions initiatives

for Starwood Capital Group or Starwood Capital most recently as Senior Vice President Starwood

Capital was formed in 1992 and during his tenure raised and invested funds on behalf of institutional

investors through seven private real estate funds each of which had investment objectives similar to ours

but not limited to multifamily investments and which in the aggregate ultimately invested

approximately $8 billion in approximately 250 separate transactions During such period Mr Babb led or

shared investment responsibility for over 75 investment transactions totaling approximately $2.5 billion

of asset value in more than 20 million square feet of residential office and industrial properties located in

25 states and seven foreign countries including significant number of transactions that were contributed

to the initial public offering of Equity Residential Properties Trust NYSE EQR and to create iStar

Financial Inc NYSE SF1 Mr Babb was also active in Starwood Capitals efforts to expand its platform

to invest in Europe From August 2003 to July 2007 Mr Babb founded his own principal investment

company Bluepoint Capital LLC Bluepoint was private real estate investment company focused on the

acquisition development and/or redevelopment of residential and commercial properties in the Northeast

United States and Western Europe Mr Babb received BA degree in Economics in 1987 from the

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill

Our board of directors selected Mr Babb to serve as one of our directors because of his extensive

expertise in real estate acquisition management finance and disposition With more than 20
years

of

experience investing in and managing real estate investments Mr Babb offers key insights and

perspective with respect to our real estate portfolio As one of our executive officers and the Chief

Investment Officer of our advisor Mr Babb also informs and advises the board with respect to the critical

operational issues facing our company

Brian Bailey Independent Director Mr Bailey has served as one of our independent directors

since January 2009 Mr Bailey has more than 15 years of experience in sourcing evaluating structuring

and managing private investments as well as years of experience with real estate and real estate-related

debt financing

Mr Bailey founded and currently serves as Managing Member of Carmichael Partners LLC
private equity investment firm based in Charlotte North Carolina From December 2008 to December

2009 Mr Bailey served as Senior Advisor of Carousel Capital LLC private equity investment firm

From April 2000 to December 2008 Mr Bailey served as Managing Partner of Carousel Capital Since

its inception Carousel has made portfolio investments in more than 25 operating companies and has

conpleted numerous additional acquisitions and financings related to these portfolio companies

including sale leaseback transactions and has utilized such financings in several of its investments Mr
Baileys duties at Carousel Capital included sourcing and evaluating investment opportunities managing

thb fqms investment process serving on the firms Investment Committee managing the finns

fundtliising efforts and communications with its limited
partners

and Board of Advisors and serving as

director on the boards of certain portfolio companies some of which have meaningful real estate assets on

their balance sheets Thus Mr Bailey has been involved in the management of numerous real estate

issues over the course of his involvement with such portfolio companies From 1999 to 2000 Mr Bailey

was team member of Forstmann Little Co private equity firm in New York New York From 1996

to 1999 Mr Bailey was Principal at the Carlyle Group global private equity firm in Washington

D.C Earlier in his career Mr Bailey worked in the leveraged buyout group at CS First Boston in New

York New York and in the mergers and acquisitions group at Bowles Hollowell Conner Company in

Charlotte North Carolina Mr Bailey has also worked in the public sector as Assistant to the Deputy

Chief of Staff and Special Assistant to the President at the White House from 1994 to 1996 and as

Director of Strategic Planning and Policy at the U.S Small Business Administration in 1994 He currently

serves as director of the Telecommunications Development Fund private equity investment fund

headquartered in Washington DC and as trustee at the North Carolina School of Science and



Mathematics Mr Bailey received .A degree in Mathematics and Economics in 1988 from the

University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and an M.B .A degree in 1992 from the Stanford Graduate

School of Business located in Stanford California

Our board of directors selected Mr Bailey as one of our independent directors to leverage his

extensive experience in sourcing evaluating structuring and managing private equity investments and his

experience related to real estate and real-estate related debt financing In addition Mr Baileys prior

service on the audit committees of numerous privately held companies provides him with the requisite

skills and knowledge to serve effectively on our audit conmuittee

Bobby Majumder Independent Director Mr Majumder has served as one of our independent

directors since January 2009 Mr Majumder became partner at the law firm of KL Gates LLP in May
2005 where he specializes in corporate and securities transactions with an emphasis on the representation

of underwriters placement agents and issuers in both public and private offerings private investment in

public equity PIPE transactions and venture capital and private equity funds

From January 2000 to April 2005 Mr Majumder was partner at the firm of Gardere Wynne
Sewell LLP Through his law practice Mr Majumder has gained significant experience relating to the

acquisition of number of types of real property assets including raw land improved real estate and oil

and gas interests He is an active member of the Park Cities Rotary Club charter member of the Dallas

Chapter of The Indus Entrepreneurs and an Associates Board member of the Cox School of Business at

Southern Methodist University Mr Majumder received J.D degree in 1993 from Washington and Lee

University School of Law located in Lexington Virginia and BA degree in 1990 from Trinity

University located in San Antonio Texas

Our board of directors selected Mr Majumder as one of our independent directors due to his

depth of legal experience in advising clients with respect to corporate and securities transactions

including representations of underwriters placement agents and issuers in both public and private

offerings Mr Majumder also brings with him significant legal experience relating to the acquisition of

number of types of real estate assets

Roinano Tio Independent Director Mr Tio has served as one of our independent directors since

January 2009 Mr Tio serves as Managing Director at RM Capital Management LLC boutique

investment and advisory firm focused on investing in distressed commercial mortgages at discounts that

prqvide attractive risk adjusted returns

From January 2008 to May 2009 Mr Tio served as Managing Director and co-head of the

coninercial real estate efforts of HCP Real Estate Investors LLC an affiliate of Harbinger Capital

Parthers Funds $10 billion private investment firm specializing in eventldistressed strategies From

August 2003 until December 2007 Mr Tio was Managing Director at Carlton Group Ltd boutique

real estate investment banking firm where he was involved in over $2.5 billion worth of commercial real

estate transactions Earlier in his career Mr Tio was involved in real estate sales and brokerage for 25

years Mr Tio received .S degree in Biochemistry in 1982 from Hofstra University located in

Hempstead New York

Our board of directors selected Mr Tio as one of our independent directors as result of his

demonstrated leadership skill and industry-specific experience developed through number of high-level

management positions with investment and advisory firms specialized in the commercial real estate

sector



PROPOSAL ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

At the annual meeting you and the other stockholders will vote on the election of all five members

of our board of directors Those persons elected will serve as directors until the 2012 annual meeting and

until their successors are duly elected and qualified The board of directors has nominated the following

people for re-election as directors

R.RaminKamfar JamesG.Babbffl

Brian Bailey Bobby Majumder

Romano Tio

Each of the nominees for director is current member of our board of directors Detailed

information on each nominee is provided on pages through

The appointed proxies will vote your shares of common stock as you instruct unless you submit

your proxy without instructions In this case they will vote FOR all of the director nominees listed

above If any nominee becomes unable or unwilling to stand for re-election the board may reduce its size

or designate substitute If substitute is designated proxies voting on the original nominee will be cast

for the substituted nominee

Vote Required

Under our charter majority of the votes present in person or by proxy at the meeting is required

for the election of the directors This means that director nominee needs to receive more votes for his or

her election than against his or her election in order to be elected to the board Because of this majority

vote requirement withhold votes and broker non-votes will have the effect of vote against each

nominee for director If an incumbent director nominee fails to receive the required number of votes for

reelection then under Maryland law he or she will continue to serve as holdover director until his or

her successor is duly elected and qualified

Whether you plan to attend the meeting and vote in person or not we urge you to have your
vote recorded Stockholders can submit their votes by proxy by mail using the enclosed proxy

card YOUR VOTE IS VERY IMPORTANT Your immediate response will help avoid potential

delays and may save us significant additional expenses associated with soliciting stockholder votes

Recommendation

YOUR BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS VOTE FOR
ALL NOMINEES LISTED FOR REELECTION AS DIRECTORS



STOCKHOLDER PROPOSALS

If stockholder wishes to present proposal at the 2012 annual meeting our bylaws require that

the stockholder give advance written notice to our secretary Michael Konig at our executive offices

no earlier than January 23 2012 and no later than February 22 2012 However if we hold our annual

meeting before July 92012 or after September 72012 stockholders must submit proposals no earlier

than 150 days prior to the 2012 annual meeting date and no later than the later of 120 days prior to the

2012 annual meeting date or ten days after announcement of the 2012 annual meeting date The mailing

address of our executive offices is Heron Tower 55 East 70th Street 9th Floor New York New York

10022

OTHER MATTERS

As of the date of this proxy statement we know of no business that will be presented for

consideration at the annual meeting other than the items referred to above If any other matter is properly

brought before the meeting for action by stockholders proxies in the enclosed form returned to us will be

voted in accordance with the recommendation of the board of directors or in the absence of such

recommendation in accordance with the discretion of the proxy holder
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Forward-Looking Statements

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 10-K constitute forward-looking statements within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933 as amended the Securitim

Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act These forward looking statements include discussion and analysis of the financial condition of Bluerock

Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc and our subsidiaries which may be referred to herein as the Company we us or on our anticipated capital expenditures required to complete projects

amounts of anticipated cash distributions to oar atockboldera in the future and other matters These forward-looking statements are not historical facts hut are the intent belief or current expectations of

our management based on their knowledge and understanding of the business and indnstry Words such as may anticipates expects intends plans believes seeks estimates

would could should and variations of these words and similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements These statements are not guarantees of future performance and are

subject to risks uncertainties and other factors some of which are beyond our control are difficult to predict and could cause actual results to differ materially from those expressed or forecasted in the

forward-looking statements We intend for these forward-looking statements to be covered by the applicable safe harbor provisions created by Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the

Exchange Act

Forward-looking statements that were true at the time made may ultimately prove to be incorrect or false We caution investors not to place undue reliance on forward
looking statements which

reflect our maangements view only as of the date of this Annual Report on Form 10-K We undertake no obligation to update or revise forward looking statements to reflect changed assumptions the

occurrence of unanticipated events or changes to future operating results The forward looking statements should be read in
light of the risk factors identified in the Risk Factors section of our

prospectus dated January 312011 as supplemented to date

I.e addition the following are some of the more significant risks and uncertainties although not all risks and uncertainties that could cause our actual results to differ materially from those

presented in our forward-looking statements

We area newly-formed entity and our limited operating history makes our future performance difficult to predict

Our officers and non independent directors have substantial conflicts of interest because they also are officers and owners of our advisor and its affiliates including our sponsors

During the early stages of our operations until the proceeds of our public offering are invested in real estate and real estate related investments we
expect

to fund distributions from the un

invested proceeds of our public offering and borrowings Thereafter we may pay distributions from un invested proceeds of our public offering borrowings and the sale of assets to the extent

distributions exceed our earnings or cash flows from operations

We will rely on our advisor an affiliate of our officers and non-independent directors to manage our business and select and manage investments Our advisor is newly-formed entity The

success of our business will depend on the success of our advisor in
performing these duties

To the extent we sell substantially less than the manimum number of shares in our public offering we may not have sufficient funds after the payment of offering and related expenses to acquire

diverse portfolin of properties

We may fail to qualify as REIT for federal income tax purpoaeu We would then be subject to corporate
level taxation and we would not be required to pay any

distributions to our stockholders

Our offering was suspended from November 17 2010 until March 2011 in connection with our determination to mutate certain of our financial statements These restatements resulted in

aubstantial unanticipated costs in the form of accounting legal fees and similar professional fees in addition to the substantial diversion of time and attention of oar Chief Financial Officer and

members of our accounting team in preparing the restatements Although the restatement is complete we can give no assurances that we will not incur additional costs associated with the

restutements Our current cnrpnrate operating expenses
exceed the cash flow received from our investments in real estate joint ventures tf the rate at which we raise offering proceeds dues not

improve significantiy with the reconunencement of oar offering our general and administrative costs will remain higher relative to the size of our portfolio Moreover we cannot predict the impact

of the restatement on our ability to increase sales To the extent cash on hand is not sufficient to meet our short-term liquidity requirements we expect to utilize credit facilities obtained from

affiliates or unaffiliated tlsird parties Our sponsor has also agreed to defer payment of asset management fees acquisition fees and operating and offering costs advanced on our behalf and

current year reimbursable operating expenses through 201 as well as to fund any remaining cash shortfall as necessary In addition as our sponsor has management control of the affiliates that

are lenders to us and thus has the authority to extend the notes that have maturities in 20t iit has committed to extend such notes based on our ability to repay those obligations

Cautionary Note

The rcpresentutions warranties and covenants made by us in any agreement filed as an exhibit to this Annual Report on Form 10-K are made solely for the benefit of the parties to the

agreement including in some cases for the
purpose

of allocating risk among the parties to the agreement and should not be deemed to be representations warranties or covenants to or with any

other parties Moreover these representations warranties or covenants should not be relied upon as accurately describing or reflecting the current state of our affairs



PART
Item Business

Organization

Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc the Company was incorporated on July 25 2001 under the laws of the state of Maryland We intend to qualify as real estate investment trust or

REtT for federal income tax purposes
As REIT we generally are not subject to corporate-level income taxes To maintain our REIT status we are required among other requirements to distribute

annually at least 90% of our REIT taxable income as defined by the tnternal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code to our stockholders If we fail to quelify as REIT in any taxable year we

would be subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate tax rates

On August 222001 we filed registration statement on Form 11 with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC to offer maximum of $1000000000 in shares of our common stock

in our primary offering at an offering price of $10.00 per share with discounts available for certain categories of purehasers and up to $215000000 in shares pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan

at $9.50
per

share the Initial Public Offering The SEC declared our registration stetement effective on October 15 2009 and we retained Select Capital Corporation to serve as the dealer manager of the

Initial Public Offering The dealer manager is responsible for marketing our shares in the initial public offering
As of May 20 2010 we had received

gross offering proceeds sufficient to satisfy the

minimum offering amount for the Initial Public Offering Accordingly we broke escrow with respect to subscriptions received from all states in which our shares are currently being offered As of March

11 2011 we had accepted aggregate gross offering proceeds of $6204030 We intend to use substantially all of the net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering to invest in diverse portfolio of real

estate and real estate-related assets

We have no employees and are supported by relaed party service agreements We are externally managed by Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Advisors LP the Advisor Delaware limited

partnership organixed in 2007 The Advisor is responsible for meosging our affairs on dsy to-day basis and for identifying and making real estate investments on our behalf Substantially ali our

-1

business is conducted through our operating partnership Bluerock Enhanced Moltifamily Holdings LP Delaware limited partnership Bluerock Holdings

The principal executive offices of our company and the Advisor are located at Heron Building 70 East 555 Street New York New York 10022 Our telephone number is 177 126-BLUE 2583

Material Acquisitions

As of December 312010 we through joint venture partnerships own equity interests in five multifamily
real estate properties

For more information
regarding our investment soc Item

Properties

Investment Objeclivea

We intend to acquire diveraified portfolio of real estate and reel estate related investments with
primary

focus on well located institutional-quality multifamily properties
with

strong
and

stable cash flows We intend to implement what we refer to as the Enhanced Multifasoily strategy at these multifamily propertins which we believe will increase rents tenant retention and property

values and generate attractive returns for our investora We also intend to acquire welt-located residential properties
that we believe

present significant opportunities for short-term capital appreciation

such as those requiring repositioning renovation or redevelopment and properties available at opportunistic prices from distressed or time-constrained sellers In addition we will seek to originate or

invest in real estate-related securities that we believe
present the potential for high current income or total retum including but not limited to mortgage bridge or subordinated loans debt securities and

preferred or other equity securities of other real estate companies which we refer to as real estate-related investments and may invest in entities that make similar investments

We may adjust our targeted portfolio allocation based on among other things prevailing real estate market conditions and the availability of attractive investment opportunities We will not

forego an attractive investment because it does not fit within our targeted asset class or portfolio composition The volume and value of properties and real estate related investments we acquire will

depend initially on the proceeds of the Initial Public Offering



Enhanced Multifamily Strategy

The Advisors Enhanced Multifamily strategy consists of series of initiatives that we betieve can create sustainable competitive advantage and allow us to realize long-term increases in

multifamily property value This strategy seeks to transform the perception of the apartment from purely functional one i.e as solely place to live to lifestyle product community i.e as place to

live interact and socialize thereby creating an enhanced perception of value among residents allowing for premium rental rates and improving resident retention

The initiatives consist of amenities and attributes that go beyond traditional features and incorporate cosmetic and architectural improvements along with technology music and activities to

establish an enhanced sense of comfort and appeal to our target residents desire for sense of community by creating places to gather socialize and interact in highly amenitized enviromnent This

strategy is specifically targeted to appeal to the following two lucrative and rapidly growing segments of the multifamily market

Lfestyle Renters are generally established adult households with multiple housing choices open to them that choose to rent an apartment for primarily nonfinancial reasons They

include Baby Boomers individuals bom in the U.S between 1946 and 1964 who have become empty nesters and are seeking to live simpler lifestyle without the responsibilities of

home ownership as well as older members of the Echo Boomers the generation born in the US between l9St and 2000

Middle Market Renters are generally younger and more mobile than Lifestyle Rentem and while they can generally afford to own they have chosen either to save their money

perhaps to purchase larger house at later date to spend it on other goods and services or to invest in something other than housing or they are in personal or job transition

For Middle Market Renters an apartment can provide an inexpensive and maintenance free residence

As further benefit by appealing to and attracting the Lifestyle Renters and Middle Market renters we believe the Enhanced Multifamily strategy can generate significant additional revenue-

enhancing options at our properties including the ability to provide and charge for premium units upgrade packages and equipment rentals such as washers and dryers flat screen televisions and

premium sound systems

Burrowing Policlea

Under our charter the maximum amount of our indebtedness may not exceed 300% of our net assets as of the date of any borrowing which is generally expected to approximate 75% of the cost

of our investments however we may exceed that limit if approved by majority of our independent directors We expect that once we have fully invested the maximum proceeds of the Initial Public

Offering nm indebtedness will be approalmately 50% of the sum of the value of our real properties before deducting depreciation and other non-cash reserves and the value of our other assets There is

no limit on the amount we may borrow for the purchase of any single property or other investment Our Board of Directors must review our aggregate borrowings at least quarterly



Distribution Policy

Generally our policy
will be to pay

distributions from cash flow from operations However we expect that some or all of our distributions will be
paid from sources other than cash flow from

..-. operations snch as from the proceeds of the Initial Public Offering cash advances to ns by the Advisor cash resulting from waiver or deferral of asset management fees and borrowings including

borrowings secured by our assets in anticipation of future operating cash flow until such time as we have sufficient cash flow from operations to fully fund the payment of distributions there

from Further because we may receive income from interest or rents at various times during our fiscal
year

and because we may need cash flow from operations during particular period to fund capital

expenditures and other expenses we expect that at least during the early stages of our development and from time to time during our operational stage we will declare distributions in anticipation of cash

flow that we expect to receive
during

later period and we will pay these distributions in advance of our actual
receipt of these funds We may fund such distributions from advances from the Advisor or

sponsors or from the Advisors deferral of its asset management fee

To the extent that we repurchase shares pursuant to oar share repurchase plan or make payments or reimburse certain expenses to the Advisor pursuant to our advisory agreement our cash flow

and therefore our ability to make distributions from cash flow as well as cash flow available for investment will be negatively impacted In addition certain amounts we are required to pay to the Advisor

including the monthly asset management fee the property management fee the financing fee the disposition fee and the payment made upon conversion of our convertible stock depend on the assets

acquired gross revenues of the properties managed indehtedness incurred sales prices of investments sold or the value of our compsny at the time of conversion respectively
and therefore cannot be

quantified or reserved for until such fees have been eamed We are required to pay these amounts to the Advisor regardless of the amount of cash we distribute to our stockholders and therefore our

ability to make distributions from cash flow as well as cash flow available for investment to our stockholders may be negatively impacted In addition to the extent we invest in development or

redevelopment projects or in properties that have significant capital requirements these properties
will not immediately genemte operating cash flow Thus our ability to make distributions may be

negatively impacted especially during our early periods of opemtion

We paid our first distribution on June 12010 and we expect to declare distributions on quarterly basis and to pay distributions to our stockholders on monthly basis We calculate these

monthly distributions based on daily record dates so our investors will become eligible for distributions immediately upon the purchase of their shares Distributions will be paid to stockholders as of the

record dates selected by the directors

We are requited to make distributions sufficient to satisfy the requirements for qualification as REIT for lax purposes Generally distributed income will not be taxable to us under the Code if we

distribute at least 90% of oar REIT taxable mcome

Distributions will be authorized at the discretion of our Board of Directors in arrordanre with oar earnings cash flow anticipated rash flow and general financial condition Tbe boards

diacretion will be directed in substantial part by its intention to cause us to comply with the REIT requirements Because we may receive income from interest or rents at various times during our fiscal

year distributions may not reflect our income earned in that particular distribution period hut may he made in anticipation of rash flow that we expect to receive during later period and maybe made in

advance

of actual receipt of funds in an attempt to make distributions relatively uniform We may utilize capital borrow money issue new securities or sell assets in order to make distributions In addition

from time to time the Advisor and its affiliates may but are not required to agree to waive or defer all or portion of the acquisition asset management or other fees or other incentives due to them enter

into lease agreements for un1eascd space pay geiseml administrative expenses or otherwise supplement investor returns in order to increase the amount of rash available to make distributions to our

stockholders

Many of the factors that can affect the availability and timing of cash distributions to stockholders are beyond our control and change in any one factor could adversely affect our ability to

pay future distributions There can be no assurance that future cash flow will support distributions at the rate that such distributions are paid in any particular distribution period

Regulationa

Our investments are subject to various federal state local and foreign laws ordinances and regulations including among other things zoning regulations land use controls environmental

controls relating to air and water quality noise pollution and indirect environmental impacts such as increased motor vehicle activity We believe that we have all permits
and approvals necessary

under

current law to operate our invesinients

Environmental

As an owner of real estate we are subject to various environmental laws of federal state and local governments Compliance with existing laws has not had material adverse effect on our

financial condition or reaults of operations and management does not believe it will have such an impact in the future However we cannot predict the impact of unforeseen enviromnental contingencies

or new or changed laws or regulations on properties in which we hold an interest or on propertins that may hr acquired directly or indirectly in the future



Induatry Segment

Our current business consists of investing in and operating multifamily communities Snbstantially all of our consolidated net loss is from investments in real estate properties that we own

through joint ventures which we account for under the
equity method of accounting We internally evaluate operating performance on an individual property level and view our real estate assets as

one industry segment and accordingly our properties are aggregated into one reportable segment

Available Information

We electronically file annual reports on Form 10 quarterly reports on Form 10 current reports on Form g-K and all amendments to those reports with the SEC We also have filed with the

SEC registration statements on Form 5-11 in connection with the Initial Public Offering of our common stock Copies of our filings with the SEC may be obtained from the SECs website at wwwsec.gov

Access to these filings is free of charge

Item 1A Risk Factnrs

We have omitted discnssion of risk factors because as smaller reporting company we are not required to provide such information For discussion of the significant factors that make an

investment in our shares risky see the prospectus
that relates to the Initial Public Offering and the Liquidity and Capital Resources Section Under Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of

Financial Conditions and Results of Operations of this report

Item lB Unresolved Staff Comments

We have no unresolved staff comments

Item Properties

We through wholly-owned subsidiaries of our operating partnership have acquired five investments through unconsolidated joint ventures as further described below The following is

summary of our investment portfolio as of December 312010

Joint Venture Equity Investment Information

Amount of Our Our

Investment Net of Owoeralilp

Diatributiom and Interest in

Cumulative Property

Gains/ILosues Owner

Average

Approx Annual

Rentable Property Approx Effective Approx

Multifamily Community Square Number Date Acquisition Annoalized Rent Per

Name/Location Footage of Units Acquired Costt Base Rent Unit Leased

Sptiouseat14\yt is
News/NstVportNewsgitha 310826 432 t2/03/2009 $29.25 $1398M 37.5in% $41S $9443 9Z%

The Reserve at Creekside

Village/Chananoogs

Tennessee 211632 192 03/31/2010 $14.25M $.32M 2331% $2.07M S9860

The Apartmenta at

MesdowmontlChapet Hill

North Carolina 296240 258 04/09/2010 $36.96 $124 16.25% $3.94 $tS278

97%

92%

The Estates st Perimeter/

Augusta Georgia 266148 240 09/01/2010 $24.95 $1.77 25% $2.88 $11888

Gardens at HlllshomVil14/L If
Nashvilletenneesee 181460 201 09/30f20t0 $32.39 lvi i.l9 125% $3.24M $16111

90%

96%

Total 1272306 1323 $137.80M $6318M $16.28M $12305 95%

Property Acquisition Cost excludes acquisition fees and closing costs

Joint Ventures

We accounted for the acquisitions of our interests in properties though managing member LLCs in accordance with the provisions of the Consolidation Topic of the FASE ASC



For Springhouse Augusta and Hilisboro our contribution into the managing member LW waa funded through loan from ao affiliate who is another investor in the managing member LLC thus

our equity investment is not at risk Since unanimous approval is required by all members to direct the activities that most significantly impact the managing member LLCs economic performance the

holder of the equity investment at risk lacks that power and thus we concluded that the managing member LLC entities are VIEs We are not the primary beneficiary because we do not have the power to

direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic
performance of the managing member LLC sod would not be considered to be the investor that is most closely associated with the entity

among the related party investors As result our investments are reflected ss investments in unconsolidated joint ventures under the equity method of accounting

For Creekside our initisl contribution into the managing member LLC was funded through loan from an affiliate and accounted for as discussed above however on September 282010 the loan

was repaid and the managing member LLC was no longer considered VIE We then analyzed the mansging member LLC under voting interest model and determined that the investment in the

unconsolidated joint venture should be accounted for under the equity method as each member bad an equal voting interest

For Meadowmont our initial contribution into the managing member LLC on April 2010 was funded through loan from an affiliate wbo is another investor in the managing member LW but

this was subsequently repaid on June 2010 However the voting rights of the investors are not proportional to their obligations to absorb the expected losses or their rights to receive the
expected

residual renirns of the managing member and substantially all nf the activities are done on behalf of the single related party group all of the investors are part of single related party group thus tlsis

would cause the managing member LLC to be VIE We are not the primary beneficiary because we do not have the power to direct the sctivities that most significantly impact the economic performance

of the managing member LLC and would not be considered to be the investor that is most closely associated with the entity ssnong the related party investors As result our investment is reflected as an

investment in unconsolidated joint ventures under the equity methed of accounting

Item Legal Proceedings

We are not party to and none of our properties are subject to any material pending legal proceeding

Item

PART II

ItemS Market for Registrants Common Equity Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

Market Information

There is no established public trading market for our common stock Therefore there is risk that stockholder may not be sble to sell our stock at time or price acceptable to the stockholder

Pursuant to lha Initial Public Offering we are selling shares of our common stock to the public at price of $10.00
per

share and at price of $9.50 per share pursuant to our distribution reinvestment

plan Unless and until our shares are listed on national securities exchange it is not expected that public market for the shares will develop

To facilitate Financial Industry Regulatory Authority FINRA member participation in the Initial Public Offering we disclose in each annual report distributed to stockholders
per

share

estimated value of our common stock the methed by which it was developed and the date of the data used to develop the estimated value In addition beginning 18 mouths after the completion of our

offering slage we will
prepare

annual statements of estimated share values to assist both fiduciaries of retirement plans subject lo the annual reporting requirements of ERISA and custodians of

individual retirement accounts IRAs in the preparation of their reports relating to an investment in our shares For these purposes our estimated value of share of our common stock is $10.00 per

share as of December 31 2010 The basis for this valuation is the fact thst the current public offering price for our shares in the Initial Public Offering is $10.00 per
share ignoring purchase price

discounts for cersaln categories of purchasers However this estimated value is likely to be higher than the price at which you could resell your shares because our public offering involves the

payment of underwriting compensation and other directed selling efforts which psyments and efforts are likely to preduce higher sales price than could otherwise be obtalned and no public
market

exists for our shares

Until 18 months after the completion of our offering stage we intend souse the price pald per share as the estimated value of share of our common stock provided however that if we have

sold properties or other assets and have made one or more special distributions to stockholders of all or portion of the net proceeds from such sales the estimated value of share of our common stock

will be equal to the offering price of shares in our most recent offering less the amount of nat sale proceeds per
share that constitute retum of capital distributed so investors as result of such sales

Beginning 18 months after the completion of our offering stage our advisor or another firm we choose for that purpose will estimate the value of our shares based on number of assumptions
that may

not be accurate or complete

This estimated value is not likely to reflect the proceeds you would receive upon our liquidation in part because the estimated values do not necessarily indicate the price at which assets could

he sold and because the estimate may not take into account the
expenses
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Shareholder Information

As of March 18 2011 we had approximately 680577 shares of common stock
outstanding held by total of 209 stockholders

Distributions

As of May 202010 we had received gross offering proceeds sufficient to satisfy the minimum offering amount for the Initial Public Offering and paid onr first distribution on June 12010 Until

we generate sufficient cash flow from operations or funds from operations FF0 to fully fund the payment of distributions some or all of our distribotions wilt be paid from other sources We may

generate cash to pay distribotions from financing activities components of which may include borrowings including borrowings secured by our assets in anticipation of future operating cash flow and

proceeds of this offering In addition from time to time the Advisor and its affiliates may agree to waive or defer ali or portion of the acquisition asset management or other fees or other incentives

doe to them enter into tease agreements for unleased space pay general administrative expenses or otherwise supplement investor returns in order to increase the amount of cash available to make

distributions to our stockholders In addition to the extent we invest in development or redevelopment projects or in
properties that have significant capital requirements these properties may not

immediately generate cash flow from operations or FF0 Thus our ability to make distributions may be negatively inspacted especially during our early periods of operation

We expect our Board of Directors to declare distributions on quarterly basis and to pay distributions to our stockholders on monthly basis We calculate these monthly distributions based

on daily record dates so our investors will become eligible for distributions immediately opon purchasing shares Distribotions will be paid to stockholders as of the record dates selected by the directors

Distributions by quarter for the year ended December 312010 were as follows

Distributions Paid

Cash Flow Total Declared Ordiossy

Provided by Used Distributions Distribution Taxable Return of

2010 Cash Reinvested Tolal in Operations
Declared Per Sham Dividend Capital

Pourlis Quaer $j343 t$a43 fy $10S782 $378fl8 siigi $oiis

31422 77374 572386 89432 0l35 -% 100%

4979 2473 552 30952 27455

First Qusrterty $11L291 ..% 100%

Year to Date
$129774 j$63334 $192708 $870l05 $232994

Our first distribution was paid on June 12010

Distributions declared per sham assumes the share was issued and outstanding each day during the period and was based on declared daily distribution rate of $000191781 beginning May 20
2010

Equity Compensation Plan

We have adopted the Bluerock Enhanced Multifsmily Trust Inc Long Term Incentive Plsn which we refer to as the Incentive Plan in order to enable us to provide an incentive to oar

employees officers directors and consultants and employees and officers of our advisor to increase the value of our common stock give such
persons

stake in our future that corresponds to the

stake of each of our stockholders and obtain or retain the services of these persons who are considered essential to our long-term success by offering such persons an opportunity to participate in

our growth through ownership of our common stock or through other equity related awards We intend to issue awards only to our independent directors under our Incentive Plan which swards will be

granted under the independent directors compensation plan We have reserved and authorized an aggregate number of 2000000 shares of our common stock for issuance under the Incentive Plan
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Number of Securities

to Be issued Upon Weighted-Average

Exercise of Exercise Price of Number of Securities

Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Remaining Available

Plan Category Warrantsand Rights Warrantsand Riits for Future issuance

Equity compensation plans Ipprovedhy security holderso 1977500

Equity compensation pIsni not ap9toved by security holders
--

Total 1977500

We have granted each of our independent
directors 5000 shares of restricted stock as of the commencement of the Initial Public Offering oo October 152009 sod 2500 shares of restricted stock

as of their reelection to the Board of Directors on March 152010 The restricted stock vests as to 20% of the shares on the date of grant and as to 20% of the shares on each of the first four anniversaries

of the date of the grant thereafter

Use of Proceeds from Sales of Registered Securities and Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities

On October 15 2009 our Registration Statement on Form S-Il File No 333-153135 covering public offering of up to 130 million shares of common stock was declared effective under the

Securities Act of 1933 We commenced our initial public offering on October 152009 upon retaining Select Capital Corporation as the dealer manager for our offering We are offering 100 million shares

of common stock in our primary offering at an aggregate offering price of up to $1 billion or $10 per
share with discount available to certain categories of purchasers The 30 million shares offered under

our distribution reinvestment plan are initially being offered at an aggregate offering price of $285 million or $950 per share We expect to offer shares of common stock in our primary offering over two-

year period or until October 15 2011 If we have not sold all of the shares within two years we may extend the primary offering by up to ig months We msy sell shares under the distribution

reinvestment plan beyond the termination of the primary offering until we have sold all shares under the plan

As of March ig 2011 we had sold approximately 680577 shares of common stock in our ongoing public offering and raised gross offering proceeds of approximately $6204030 From this

amount we incurred approximately $565000 in selling commissioes and dealer manager fees payable to our dealer manager With the net proceeds of $4.3 million we invested in real estate investments

held through uncontolidaled joint ventares

During the fiscal year ended December 312010 upon re-election to the Board of Directors on March 152010 each of our non-employee directom received an automatic grant of 2500 thares of

restricted common stock pursuant to the Bluerock Enhanced Multtfasuily Trust Inc Independent Directors Compensation Plan All such shares were issued pursuant to an exemption from registration

under Section 42 of the Securities Act of 1933

Share Repurchase Plan

We have adopted share repurchase program that may enable stockholders to sell their shares to us in limited circumstances We amended and restated our share repurchase program on

February 12 2010 The effect of the amendment was to change the price at which we will repurchase the shares As amended prior to establishing
the estimated value of our shams the

prices at which

we will initially repurchase shares areas follows

The lower of $9.25 or the price paid to acquire the shams from us for stockholders who have held their shares for at least one year

The lower of $930 or the price paid to acquire the shares from ua for stockholders who have held their shares for at least two years

The lower of $9.75 or the price paid to acquire the shares from us for stockholders who have held their shares for at least three years and

Tha lowar of $1040 or the price paid to acquire the shares from us for stockboldvrs who have held their shares for at least four years

As of March 182011 we had not repurchaaed any
sharer under our share

repurchase plan

Item 6- Selected Financial Data

We have omitted presentation of selected financial data because as smaller reporting company we are not required to provide such information
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Item Managements Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction with the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc and the ootes

thereto As used herein the terms we our and us refer to Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc Maryland corporation and as required by context Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Holdings

L.P Delaware limited partnership which we refer to as our operating partnership and to theft subsidiaries Also see Forward-Looking Statements preceding Part

Overview

We are recently formed Maryland corporation that iotends to qualify ass REIT with our taxable year ended December 312010

As of May 202010 we had received gross offering proceeds sufficient to satisfy the minimum offering amount Accordingly we broke escrow with respect to subscriptions received from all

states in which our shares are currently being offered As of March 18 2011 we had accepted aggregate gross offering proceeds of $o204030 We will experience relative increase in liquidity as we

accept additional subscriptions for shares and relative decrease in liquidity as we spend net offering proceeds in connection with the acquisition development and operation of our assets

We intend to make reserve allocations as necessary to aid our objective of preserving capital for our investors by supporting the maintenance and viability of properties we acquire If reserves

and any other avallable income become insufficient to cover our operating expenses and liabilities it may be
necessary to obtain additional funds by boreowing refinancing properties or liquidating our

investment in one or more properties There is no assurance that such funds will be available or if available that the terms will be acceptable to us

We intend to make an election to be taxed as REIT under Section 856c of the Internal Revenue Cede In order to qualify as REIT we must distribute to our stockholders each calendar year at

least 90% of our taxable income excluding net capital galns if we qualify as REIT for federal income tax purposes we generally will not be subject to federal income tax on income that we distribute to

our stockholders if we fail to qualify as BElT in
any

taxable year we will be
subject to federal income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate ratas and will not be permitted to qualify as aREIT for

four
years following the

year
in which our qualification is denied Such an event could materially and adversely affect our net income and results of operations

Our Investment Strstegy

We intend to achieve our investment objectives by acquiring diverse portfolio of real estate and real estate related investments We plan to diversify our portfolio by investment type size

property location and risk with the goal of attaining portfolio that will generate attractive returns for our investors with the potential for capital appreciation Our targeted portfolio allocation is as

follows

Enhanced Multifamily We intend to allocata approximately 50% of our portfolio to investments in well-located institutional quality multifamily properties that we believe demonstrsta

strong and stable cash flows typically located in supply constrained sub-markets with relatively high expectations of rent growth As appropriate we intand to implement our advisors

Enhanced Multifamily strategy as described in the
prospectus relating to our ongoing public offering at these

properties
which we anticipate will create sustainable long-term increases

in property value and lead to increased returns to our investors by among other benefits genersting higher rental revenue and reducing resident turnover

Value Added Residential We intend to allocate
approximately 30% of our portfolio to investments in well-located residential properties that offer significant potential for short-term

capital appreciation through repositioning renovation or redevelopment In addition we will seek to acquire properties available at opportunistic prices from distressed or time

constrained sellers in need of liquidity As appropriata we intend to implement our advisors Enhanced Multifamily strategy at these properties as well

Real Estate Relatad tnvestmenta We intend to allocate approximately 20% of our portfolio in other real estate-relsted investments with the
potential for high current income or significant

total returns These investments could include first and second mortgages subordinated bridge and other loans debt and other securities related to or secured by real estate assets and

common and preferred equity which may include securities of other REITs and real estate companies Excluded from this 20% allocation is joint venture investments in which we

exercise some control Subject to the provisions of our charter some of these investments maybe made in connection with programs sponsored managed or advised by our affiliates or

those of our advisor

Although the above outlines our target portfolio we may make adjustments based on among other things prevailing real estate market conditions and the availability of aErsctive investment

opportunities We will not forego an attractive investment because it docs not fit within our targeted asset class or portfolio composition We may use the proceeds of this offering to purchase or invest

in any type
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of real eatate or real eatate related investment which we determine is in the beat interest of our atockholdera subject to the provisions of our charter which limit certain types of investments

Our pdmmy abjecdvsu to iSa capital audIo ks advmttap cfftvcnblalcvacaatoppfluldaa Wsballavs that thacuaaataccccsScuvlrccmautwffl rauultklnvuentoppatuuldaa

for massy high-quality real estate investments To the extent that we have capital available to invest we plan to actively pursue
investment opportunities to continue to execute our business plan

Results of Operations

Year endedDecember3l 2010 as compared to the year ended December 312009

The SEC declared the registration statement for our best efforts initial public offering effective on October 152009 and we retained Select Capital Corporation to serve as our dealer manager for

the offering Our results of operations as of December 312010 are not indicative of those expected in future periods as we are in our organizational and development stage

Net loss increased $1.9 million when compared to the 2009 period We began our operations on December 32009 with our acquisition of our 37.5% indirect equity interest in the Springhouse

property During 2010 we acquired indirect equity interests in four additional properties

We accounted for the acquisitions of our interests in properties through managing member LLCa in accordance with the provisions of the Consolidation Topic of the FASB ASC We analyze our

investments in joint ventures to determine if the joint venture is variable interest entity VIE and would require consolidation We evaluate the sufficiency of the total equity at risk review the

voting rights and decision making authority of the equity investment holders as group and whether there are any guaranteed returns protection against losses or capping of residual returns within the

group and establish whether activities within the venture are on behalf of an investor with disproportionately few voting rights in making this VIE determination We would consolidate venture that

is determined to be VIE if we were the primary beneficiary Beginning January 12010 new accounting standard became effective and changed the methed by which the primary beneficiary of VIE is

determined to primarily qualitative approach whereby the variable interest holder if any that has the power to direct the VIEs most significant activities is the primary beneficiary To the extant that our

joint ventures do not qualify as VIEs we further assess the existence of controlling financial interest under voting interest medel to determine whether the venture should be consolidated

Under the equity methed of accounting our investments in the
joint ventures are included on our balance sheet however the assets and liabilities of the joint ventures for which we use the

equity methed are not included on our balance sheet

Management and oversight fees were approximately $223000 for the year ended December 31 2010 This represents the 1% asset management fee due to the Advisor for oversight of the

properties and was $214000 higher than 2009 due to the acquisitions made in 2010

Acquisition costs were approximately $363000 for the
year

ended December 31 2010 and relate to the acquisitions of Creekside Mesdowmont Augusta and Hillsbnm properties Acquisition

costs were approximately $192000 in 2009 as result of the Springhouse acqalsition

General and administrative
expenses

were approximately $315000 and include allowable operating expenses up to the 2% of average invested assets threshold General and administrative

expenses were approximately $45000 in 2009 The increase in 2010 is due to increased assets on which to base the average invested assets calculation and full year of operations compared to

months in 2009

Interest
expense was approximately $259000 and was for interest related to our affstiare notes used to fund our interests in the joint ventures Interest expense was $15000 for 2009 and was

related to an affsliase loan to fund our interest in the Springhouse joint venture

Equity in loss of unconsolidated joint ventures was appmxisnasely $1.1 million for the year ended December 312010 and represents our ownership share of net loss from our investments in the

managing member JV Entities The table below reflects the components of the $1.1 million loss

Springhouse Creekside Meadowmont Augusta Hilishoro Total

Property Operating Results

Rental revenue $3181600 $1423900 $2866300 $931900 $806700 $9910400

Opereiing expenses l747500 690100 1105300 338100 61000 4042i700

Net Operating Income NOfl1
Interest llxpetsse

2134100

3429Q0
733800

567100
1861000

1l33jt0

593100

258900

545700

239900

5167700

3j5fl10ö

Acquisition
fees

Drpreciatiottrqndamordzatjoa l$10jt00

602900

745100
499700

1598000
373100 463800
634100 511400

1939500
519$00

Net loss

Net loss alribuiabje to
JYpartoeth

878800
544019

1181300
892530

1409800
itij4to

653300
486238

669000
580292

4792200
3680479

Ansurtixaiion of deferret1flnanaag costs judd on belsslfofjoiist4eosures

5334781 5288770 5232400 5167162 588708 51111721

35503

Equity in net loss of unconsolidated joint ventures 51147224
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Occupancy NOL In thouaaads

Sprhghotiuia4ewportNSS 12/03/2009 452 92% $134 L59 37S%
The Reserve at Creekside Vifiage 03/31/2010 192 97% 734 129 2331%

The 4uitjoenteatMeadoslmtt 04fO9f201O 258 92% $l$61 1359 1625%

The Estates at Perimeter 09/01/2010 241 90% 593 229 25.00%

Gardeor atBlllsltqro Village 09/30/2010 201 96% 546 228

Please see table above for reconciliation of our oct loss to our NO

Year endedDecember3l 2009 compared to the year ended December 312008

During the period from inception July 25 2008 to December 31 2008 we had bern formed but had not yet commenced operations as we had not yet begun our best-efforts initial public

offering The results of operations represent our consolidated results from December 2009 the date of our first acquisition though December 31 2009 and are not indicative of operating results for

full year

Management fees were approximately $9000 and represents the 1% asset management fee due to the Advisor for oversight of the property

Acquisition costs were approximately $192000 ass result of the Springbouse investment

Genera and administrative expenses were approximately $45000 and include allowable operating expenses up to the 2% of average invested assets threshold permitted
under our charter

limitations on total operating expenses

Interest expense was approximately $15000 and was related to an affiliate loan to fund our interest in the Springhnuse property

Equity in /oss of unconso/idared joint venture was approximately $177000 and
represents our ownership

share of net loss from our investment in the Springhouse Managing Member 3V Entity

acquired December 32009 and is detailed as follows

Springliouse

Rental revenue $309000

Operating
expenses 100800

Yntuiest Expense ftO700

Income after debt service 101500

Acquisition fees 33j00
Depreciation and amortization 211.000

Netlloss 471300
Net loss attributable to the JV partners 294258

5176752

Amortization of deferred financing costs paid on behalf of
joint veutures 365

Equity in net psa of stncoflolidated joint Veqturos
5171117
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We evaluate the performance of our properties based upon NO which is non-Generally Accepted Accounting Principle GAAP supplemental financial measure We use NOt to

evaluate the operating performance of our real estate and to make decisions concerning the operation of the property We believe that NOl is essential to the investor in understanding the

value of income-producing real estate Net Income is the GAAP measure that is most directly comparable to NOl however NOl should not be considered as an altemative to net income as

the primary indicator of operating performance as it excludes certain items such as depreciation and amortization interest expense and corporate general and administrative

expenses Additionally NOl as defined by us may not be
comparable to other RtETs or companies as their defsnitions of NOt may differ from our definition

Aggregate
debt service ratio of 1.64

The following is summary of our investments as of December 312010

Indirect

Debt Service Equity

Multifamily Date Number of Coverage Interest in

Acouired Units Ratio Prouertv



Organization and Offering Costs

Some of our organization sod offering costs were initially being paid by the Advisor the dealer mansger and their affiliates on our behalf These organization and offering costs include all

expcnses other than selling commissions and the dealer manager fee to be
paid by us in connection with our initial public offering including but not limited to legal accounting printing mailing

and

fsling fees ii charges of the escrow bolder iii reimbursement of the dealer manager for amounts it may pay to reimburse the bona fide diligence expenses of broker-dealers iv reimbursement to the

advisor for the salaries of its employees and other costs in connection with preparing supplemental sales materials the cost of educational conferences held by us including the travel meal and

lodging costs of registered representatives of broker-dealers and vi reimbursement to the dealer manager for travel meals lodging and attendance fees incurred by employees of the dealer manager to

attend retail seminars conducted by broker-dealers The Advisor and its affiliates have incurred on our behalf organization and offering costs of approximately $2.8 million through December 31 2010

Pursuant to the
advisory agreement

and the dealer manager agreement we are obligated to reimburse our advisor the dealer manager or their affiliates as applicable for
organization

and other offering

costs paid by them on our behalf however our advisor is obligated to reimburse us to the extent selling rosnmissions dealer manager fees and organization and other offering costs incurred by us exceed

15% of gross proceeds from our ongoing initial public offering Through December 31 2010 including shares issued through our DRIP we had sold 6776t8 shares in the offering for gross offering

proceeds of $6204030 and recorded organization costs of $49931 other offering costs of $1339397 and selling commissions and dealer manager fees of $565329

Liquidity and Capital Resources

We are offerings maximum of $1000000000 in shares soda minimum of $2500000 in shares of our common stock in our primary offering at an offering price of $1000 per share with discounts

available for certain categories of purchasers We also are offering up to $285000000 in shares
pursuant

to our distribution reinvestment plan at $9.50 per share

Our principal demands for cash will be for acquisition costs including the purchase price of any properties loans or securities we acquire and construction and development costs and the

payment of our operating and administrative expenses continuing debt service obligations and distributions to our stockholders Generally we will fund our acquisitions from the net proceeds of our

public offering We intend to acquire our assets with cash and mortgage or other debt but we may acquire assets free and clear of permanent mortgage or other indebtedness by paying the entire

purchase price for the asset in cash or in units of limited partnership interest in our operating partnership Due to the delay between the sale of our shares and our acquisitions there may be delay in the

benefits to our stockholders if any of returns generated from our investments

We generally expect to meet our short term liquidity requirements such as our operating and administrative expenses continuing debt service obligations and the payment of distributions

through net cash provided by operations
and net proceeds ralsed in our public offering Operating cash flow is

expected to increase as additional investments are added to our portfolio We are

continuing to ralse proceeds in our ongoing public offering however we suspended our offering on November 17 2010 in order to restate certain of our financial statements and selling efforts did not

recommence until March 2011 In urder to fund general wniking capital while oar offering was saspended on Janaary 20 2011 we entered loan agreement for line of credit with an affiliate of oar

sponsor
that permits us to borrow up to $500000 and we have borrowed $150000 as of March 182011 Our current

corporate operating expenses
exceed the cash flow received from our investments in

real estate joint ventures tf the rate at which we raise offering proceeds does not improve significantly our general and administrative costs will remain higher relative to the size of our portfolio and we

may be required to incur additional debt to fund our operations To the extent rash on hand is not suffirinnt to meet our short-term liquidity requirements we expect to utilize rredit farilities obtained from

affiliates or unaffiliated third parties Our sponsor has also agreed to defer payment of asset management fees acquisition fees and operating and offering costs advanced on our behalf and current year

reimbursable
operating expenses through 2011 as well an to fund any rensalning rash shortfall as neressary In addition as our sponsor

has management control of the affiliates that are lenders to us and

thus has the authority to extend the notes that have maturities in 2011 it has committed to extend such notes based on our ability to
repay

those obligations

In addition our policy is generally to pay
distributions from rash flow from operations However some or all of our distributions to date have been paid from proreeds from our public offering

and may in the future be paid from additional sources sorh as from borrowings advances from our advisor and our advisors deferral of its fees and expense reimbursements We expert to meet our

long-term liquidity requirements surh as scheduled debt maturities and repayment of short term financing of future property acquisitions through long-term secured and unsecured borrowings
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undistributed cash flow

Our charter prohibits us from incurriog debs that would cause our borrowings to exceed 300% of our net assets unless majority of our independent directors approves the borrowing Our

charter also requires that we disclose the justification for any borrowings in excess of the 300% leverage guideline in the next quarterly report Our independent directors approved the borrowing of up to

approximately $10.3 million to purchase the Springhouse Creekaide Mesdowmont Augusta and Hillsboro properties resulting in leverage ratio in excess of the 300% guideline The independent

directors determined that the excess leverage was justified for the following reasons

the loans enabled us to purchase the property and earn rental income more quickly

the property acquisition
is

likely to increase the net offering proceeds from our initial public offering thereby improving our ability to meet our goal of acquiring diversified portfolio of

propertses to generate current sncome for investors and preserve snvestor capital

the loans are non recourse to us and

the prospectus for our initial public offering disclosed the likelihood that we would exceed the charters leverage guidelines during the early stages of the offering

Cash Flows From Operating Activities

As of December 31 2010 we owned indirect equity interests in five real estate properties During the year ended December 31 2010 net cash used in operating activities was $870105 and

consisted of the fotlowing

net loss of $2506870

Increase in receivables from affiliates of $542529 and

Increase in nther assels nf $82 679

This was offset by the following

Cash distributions received for our unconsolidated joint ventures of $392013

Non cash adjustments that increase our cash flow from operations

loss in unconsolidated joint ventures of $t .1 million This amount includes oar pro-ruts
share of non cash adjustment for the depreciation and amortization at the property

level and any non-recurring acquisition costs incurred in the year we acquired our indirect equity interest in the property

Non cash adjustment for directors stock compensation of $56875 and

Increase in accounts payable and seemed liabilities of $465861

Cash Flows From Investing Activities

Our cash used in investing for the year ended December 312010 was $5.5 million for the acquisition of the indirect equity interests in the real estate properties indicated above

Cash Flows From Financing Activities

Our cash flows from fmancing consist primarily of proceeds from oar ongoing initial public offering and proceeds from affiliate loans less distributions pald to our stockholders For the year

ended December 312010 net cash provided by fmancing activities was $6.3 million and consisted of the following

$4.3 million of cash provided by offering proceeds related to our initial public offering net of payments of cosnmissions on sales of common stock and related dealer manager fees in

the amount of $565000 mimbarsement of other offering costs to affiliates in the amount of $508 00 and offering costs paid by us directly in the amount of $832000

$2.1 million of proceeds from affiliate loans net of repayments

This was offset by $t29374 of net cash distributions after giving effect to distributions reinvested by stockholders of $63000

Funds from Operatiom and Modified Funds from Operatiom

Funds from operations FF0 is non-GAAP financial measure that is widely recognized as measum of RIItT operating performsnce We consider FF0 so be an appropriate supplemental

measure of our operating performance as it is based on net income analysis of property portfolio performance that excludes non-cash items such as depreciation The historical accounting convention

used
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for real estate assets requires straight-line depreciation of buildings and improvements which implies that the value of rest estate assets diminishes predictably over time Since real estate values

historically rise and fall with market conditions presentations of operating results for REIT using historical accounting for depreciation could be less informative. We define FF0 consistent with the

NAREITs definition as net income computed in accordance with GAAP excluding gains or losses from sales of property plus depreciation and amortization of real estate assets and after adjustments

for unconsolidated partnerships and joint ventures Adjustments for unconsolidated
partnerships

and
joints ventures will be calculated to reflect FF0 oo the same basis

tn addition to FF0 we use modified funds from operations Modified Funds from Operations or MFFO which does not include one-time acquisition expenses
to farther evaluate our

operating performance We believe that MFFO with this adjustment like those abeady included in FF0 is helpful as measure of operating performance because it excludes costs that management

considers more reflective of investing activities or non-operating valuation changes Accordingly we believe that MFFO can be useful metric to assist management investors and analysts in assessing

the sastainability of operating performance Managements evaluation of oar operating performance excludes acquisition expenses based on thc following economic considerations

In evaluating investments in real estate including both business combinations and investments accounted for under the equity method of accounting managements investment models and

analysis differentiate costs to acquire the investment from the operations derived from the investment Acquisition costs related to business combinations are to be expensed We believe by excluding

expensed acquisition costs MFFO provides useful supplemental information that is comparable for each type of our real estate investments and is consistent with managements analysis of the investing

and operating performance of our properties In additions it provides investors with information about our operating performance so they can better assess the sustainabiity of our operating

performance Acquisition expenses
include those incurred with thc Advisor or third parties The following tables present our calculation of FF0 and MFFO for the years ended December 31 2010 and

2009 Because we have been raising capital in nar public offering since our inception did not commence real estate operations until the end of 2009 and have made several additional equity investments in

2010 the results presented below are not directly comparable and should not be considered an indication of our historical operating performance

Table presents our pro-rats share of MFFO generated by our indirect equity interest in the properties Table presents reconciliation of FF0 and MFFO from our consolidated net loss

TABLE For the Year Ended

December 312010

Springhoase

Creekside

$easwmnnt

Augusta

Hilinbom

Pro rain share of property level MFFO1
1fflliate loan interest net2

MFO beforeoperatingexpeoses

Operating expenses

MFFO S2064es 832.140

All properties except Springhnuse were acquired in 2010

Short term notes lobe paid from proceeds of the equity raise

Reflects up to the 2% operating expense limitation on total operating expenses imposed by our charter

TABLE For the Year Ended For the Year Ended

December3l2010 December3l2009

Net Iosx 230$79 $4389J
Add

Fronts share of unconanlidated JVdepreciatinn and amnrtixatinn 126f17 7939

FF0 1045393 359782
Add

Pro rats share of unconsolidated IV acquisitions costs 426211 135689

Aequieition enstsperineome statement 9149S

Organizational costs 49931

rsttro S206485 S32140

This represents our share of depreciation and amortization
expense

and acquisition costs at the properties that we account for under the equity

method of accounting
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For the Year Ended

December31 2009

31910

108447

80.882

38076548007

289254 221156

495.739 54.896
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improvements and deferred leasing costs

Presentation of this information is intended to assist the reader in comparing the sustainability of the operating performance of different REtTs althongh it should be noted that not all REtTs

calculate FF0 or MFFO the same way so comparisons with other REITs may not be meaningful FF0 or MFFO should not he considered as an alternative to net income loss as an indication of our

liquidity nor is either indicative of funds available to fund our cash needs including our ability to make distributions Both FF0 and MFFO should be reviewed in connection with other GAAP

measurements

Provided below is additional information related to selected non-cash items included in net loss above which may be helpful in assessing our operating results

Directors stock compensation of $56g75 and $36250 was recognized for the years ended December31 2010 and 2009 respectively

Amortization of deferred financing costs paid on behalf of our joint ventures of approximately $35503 and $365 was recognized for the years ended December 31 20t0 and 2009

respectively

Diatributions

We intend to make regular cash distributions to our stockholders typically on monthly basis Our Board of Directors will determine the amount of distributions to be distributed to our

stockholders The boards detersnination will be based on number of factors including funds available from operations our capital expenditure requirements and the annual distribution requirements

necessary so maintain our REIT status under the Internal Revenue Code As result our distribution rate and payment frequency may vary
from time to time However to qualify as REIT for tax

purposes we must make distributions equal to at least 90% of our REIT taxable income each year Especially during the early stages of our operations we may declare distributions in excess of funds

from operations

Cash amounts distributed to stockholders during the year ended December31 20t0 were $129374 Distributions funded through the issuance of shares under the DRIP during the year ended

December 312010 were $63334 For the year ended December 312010 cash flows used in operations were $870105 Accordingly for the year ended December 31 2010 cash flow from operations did not

exceed cash amounts distributed to stockholders The shortfall for the
year

ended December 31 2010 was funded from proceeds from the Offering

Distributions declared distributions paid cash flows from operations and funds from operations FF0 and modified funds from operations MFFO were as follows

Distributions Declared Distributions Paid

Cash Flow

from

2010 Cash Reinvested Total Cash Reinvested Total

$378058

FF0

Fourth Quarter $10026 $15641 $115907 $79343 $29439 $108382 $99778
Third Quarter

Second Quarter

52630

16764

36802

10891

89432

27655

45952

4079

31422

2473

77374

6552

572386
30052
$111291

386805

326068
$237515

FirstQuarter

Year to Date $169460 $63334 $232994 $129374 $63334 $192708 $870305 $1050366

We paid our fsmt distribution to shareholders on June 12010

Critical Accounting Policies

Below is discussion of the accounting policies that management believes are critical We consider these policies critical because they involve significant management judgments and

assumptions require estimates about matters that are inherently uncertain and because they are important for understanding and evaluating our reported financial results These judgments affect the

reported amounts of assets and liabilities and our disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the dates of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the

reporting periods With different estimates or assumptions materially different amounts could be reported in our consolidated financial statements Additionally other companies may utilize different

estimates that may impact the comparability of our results of operations to those of companies in similar businesses
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Accounting for Joint Ventures

We analyze our investments injoint ventures to determine if the joint venture is variable interest entity VIE and would require consolidation We evaluate the sufficiency of the total

equity at risk review the voting rights and derision-making authority of the equity investment holders as group and whether there are any guaranteed returns protection against losses or rapping

of residual returns within the group and establish whether activities within the venture are on behalf of an investor with disproportionately few voting righla in making this VIE detennination We
would consolidate venture that is determined to be VIE if we were the primary beneficiary Beginning January 12010 new accounting standard became effective and changed the method by which

the primary beneficiary of VIE is determined to primarily qualitative approach whereby the variable interest holder if any that has the power to direct the VIEs moat significant activities is the primary

beneficiary To the extent that our joint ventures do not qualify as VIEs we further assess the existence of controlling financial interest under voting interest model to determine whether the venture

should be consolidated

Under the equity method of accounting our investments in the
joint ventures are included on our balance sheet however the assets and liabilities of the joint ventures for which we use the

equity method are not included on our balance sheet

Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include our accounts and the accounts of our majority-owned or controlled subsidiaries All significant intercompany balances and transactions have been

eliminated in the consolidated financial statements Investments in entities that are VIEs and where we are not the primary beneficiary do not control through majority voting intetest or where the other

owner has substantial participating rights are not consolidated and are reflected as investments in unconsolidated joint ventures under the equity method of accounting

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

Ineestnsents in Unconsolidated Joint Ventures

We have the following indirect equity interests in unronsnlidated joint ventures that own and operate rental properties

Property

$pringhouse

Creekside

Meadown

Augusta

Indirect Equity interest in Properiy

3730%

2331%

1625%

25 .00%

Our unconsolidated subsidiaries are primarily engaged in the management and operation of multifamily real estate properties The equity method of accounting see Critical Accounting

Policies is used for these investments in which we have the ability to exercise
significant influence but not control over operating

and financial poliries As result the assets and liabilities of these joint

ventures are not included on our balance sheet Total assets of our unconsolidated subsidiaries were $138 million as of December 312010

Subsequent Events

Sthiua of the Offering

Our offering was suspended fmm November 172010 until Marrh 22011 connection with our delennination to testate certain of our financial statements

Distrtbudons Paid

Dollar amount of Shares

Issued oursuant to DRIPMonth Date Paid Total Distribution Cash Distribution

December2010 anuaty3 2011 $40286 $40286

January2011 Felseuaiy3201t 40286 25098 15188

Februsty 2011 Marrb 82011 36468 23752 12716

Plain buttons Declared

On January 132011 our Board of Directors declared distributions based on daily record dates for the period from January 132011 through
March 312011
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On March 222011 our Board of Directors declared distributions based on daily record dates for the period from April 2011 through July 312011 Distributions payable to each stockholder of

record were or will be paid in cash on or before the 15th day of the following month

Distributions are calculated based on stockholders of record per day during the period at rate of $0.001917g1 per
share

per day and equal daily amount that if paid each day for 365-day

period would equal 7.0% anuualized rate based on purchase price of $10.00 per share

Affiliate Note Payable

On January 202011 BEMT Mcadowmont LLC wholly owned subsidiary of our operating partnership BEMT Meadowmont entered into an agreement
with Blucrock Special Opportunity

Income Fund II as affiliate of our sponsor SOIF II for line of credit represented by promissory note the Note Under the terms of the Note BEMT Meadowmont may borrow from time to time

up to $500000 for general working capital The Note has six-month term from the date of the fsrst advance and matures on July 20 2011 It bears interest compounding monthly at rate of 30-day

LIBOR 5.00% subject to minimum rate of 7.00% annualized Interest on the loan will be paid on current basis from cash flow distributed to as from BR Meadowmont JV Member LLC the

Meadowmont JV Member The Note is secured by pledge of our indirect membership interest in the Meadowmont Property and pledge of our direct membership interest in the Meadowmont iv

Member As of March ig 2011 we had borrowed $150000

Item 7A Quantilative and Qualitative Diaclosurea About Market Rink

We have omitted discussion of quantitative and qualitative disclosures about market risk because as smaller reporting company we are not required to provide such information

Item Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

The information required by this Item is
hereby included in our Consolidated Financial Statements beginning on page of the Annual Report on Form 10

Item Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None

Item 9A Coutrols and Procedurm

During the fourth
quarter

of 2010 our audit comsnittee met and in consultation with and upon managements recommendation determined that the financial statements included in our previously

issued Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended Dcecmbcr 312009 and our Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q for the periods ended March 312010 and June 302010 should no longer be relied upon

because of adjustments to our accounting policies We filed amended
reports

in the first
quarter of 2011 to restate the financial statements included in those reports In connection with the determination

to restate our financial statements our management determined that we had not maintained sufficient complement of personnel with the extensive familiarity with accounting literature necessary to

identify research and analyze certain issues to ensure the proper selection application and implementation of OAAP Management has since worked to strengthen its accounting and finance team to

correct the internal control deficiency identified Al this time based on the size of our organization and the expertise level of our current accounting and fmance team we believe we have taken the steps

necessary to correct the weakness in our disclosure controls and procedures noted above

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

As required by Role 13a-15 and Rule 15d iSty under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended the Exchange Act our management including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief

Financial Officer evaluated as of December 312010 the effectiveness of our disciosare controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Act Role 13a-15e and Rule 15d 15e Based on that evaluation

oar Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that our disclosure controls and pmcedures were effective as of December 31 2010 to provide reasonable assuranec that information

required to be disclosed by us in this report filed or submitted under the Exchange Act is recorded processed summarized and reported within the time periods specified by the rules and forms of the

Exchange Act and is accumulated and communicated to management including the Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required

disclosures

We believe however that controls system no matter how well designed and operated cannot provide absolute assurance that the objectives of the controls systems are met and no

evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud or error
if any within company have been detected
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Managements Annual Report on Internal Contral aver Financial Reporting

Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate intemsl control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-t5t and 15d-15f Our management

including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer evaluated as of December 31 2010 the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting using the framework in Interosl

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Conunission Based on that evaluation our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer

concluded that our internal controls ss of December 31 20t0 were effective

Item 9B Other Information

Entry into Amended and Restated Adrisary Agreement

On March 30 20t twe entered an amended and restated advisory agreement with the Advisor The amendment rhanges the tisning in which the Advisor is repaid for amounts in excess of the

limit on total operating expenses approved by our independent directors as justified based on unusual and non-recurring factors Under the previous advisory agreement amounts approved in excess of

the total operating expense
limit were carried forward to subsequent periods Under the amended and restated advisory agreement such amounts once approved may be repaid to the Advisor in such

period as the Advisor in its discretion requests

Sponsors Agreement to Provide Us Financial Support and to Defer Payment of Certain Fees

On March 282011 our sponsor Bluerock Real Estate LLC confirmed its agreement to provide financial support to us sufficient for us to satisfy all of our obligations and debt service

requirements as they come due until at least January 12012 and will satisfy on timely basis all of our liabilities and obligations that we are unable to satisfy when due from March 282011 through and

including January 12012 In addition our sponsor has agreed to defer payment of current
year property and asset management fees and operating expenses

that are allocated to us acquisition fees

property and asset management fees and other costs and operating expenses which have been accrued as of December 312010 and offering costs advanced on our behalf In addition our sponsor

which has management control of the affiliates that are lenders to us has the authority to extend and will extend the notes beyond December 312011 depending on our ability to repay those obligations

PART Ill

Item 10 Directors Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

Our Executive Officers and Directors

The individuals listed as our executive officers below also serve as officers and employees of our advisor As executive officers of the advisor they manage our day to-day affairs and
carry out

the directives of our Board of Directors in the review selection and recommendation of investment opporrnalties and operating our acquisitions and monitoring the performance of those acquisitions to

ensure that they are consistent with our investment objectives The duties our executive officers perform on our behalf on the other hand will not involve the review selection and recommendation of

investment opportunities but rather the performance of corporate governance
activities on our behalf that require the attention of one of our corporate officers including signing certifications required

under Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 as amended for filing with the our periodic reports All of the individuals listed below as our directors have terms expiring on the date of the 2011 annual meeting or

until his or her successor is elected and
qualified

Name AgeS Position Year First Became Director

Raniin Kajalsr 47 Chairman of the Board and ChiefExccutiye Officer 2008

James Babb HI 46 President Chief Investment Officer and Director 2001

Jordan Ruddy 4F Senior Vice President and Chief OpginOfficer N/A
Jerold Novack 55 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer N/A

MichaelL Konig 50 SeniorVice President Sectetaryand General Counsel N/A
Brian D.Bailey 44 Independent Director 2009

Bobby Majumder 42 Independent Director 2009

Romano Tin 51 Independent Director 2009

The address of each executive officer and director listed is Heron Tower 70 East 55is Street 9th Floor New York New York 10022

As of March 182011

Ramin Kamfar Chainnan of the Board and Chief Executive Officer Mr Kamfar serves as our Chairsnan of the Board and Chief Executive Officer and is the Chief Executive Officer of our advisor He has

also served as the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Bluerock since its
inception in October 2002 Mr Kamfar has approximately 20

years of experience
in building operating companies and in

various aspects of real estate mergers
and acquisitions private equity investing investment banking public and private financings and retail operations

From 1988 to 1993 Mr Kamfar worked as an investment banker at Lehman Brothers Inc New York New York where he specialized in mergers and acquisitions corporate fmance and private

placements From 1993 to 2002 Mr Kamfar was the CEO and Chairman of New World Restaurant Group Inc now knnwn as Einstein Noah Restaurant Group Inc NASDAQ BAGL company he

founded and greW through consolidation and turnaround of several companies to approximately 800 locations and $400 million in gross revenues and porrfolio of brands which included Einstein Bros

and Nashs NY Bagels From 1999 to 2002 Mr Kamfar served as an active investor advisor and member of the Board of Directors of Vsource Inc technology company ssbsequentiy sold to
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1988 from The Wharton School of the University
of Pennsylvania located in Philadelphia Pennsylvania aod aB.S degree with distinction in Finaece 1111985 from the University of Maryland located in

College Park Maryland

James Babb 11 President and Chief Investment Officer Mr Babb aerves as our President and Chief Investment Officer and is on our Board of Directors and is the President and Chief Investment

Officer of oar advisor Mr Babb is also the Managing Director and Chief Investment Officer of Bluerock which he joined in July 2007 He oversees all real estate sourcing diligence stmcturing and

acquisitions for Bluerock He has been involved exclusively in real estate acquisition management financing and disposition for more than 20 years primarily on behalf of investment funds since 1992

From 1992 to August 2003 Mr Babb helped lead the residential and office acquisitions initiatives for Starwood Capital Group or Starwood Capital most recently as Senior Vice President

Starwood Capital was funned in 1992 and during his tenure raised and invested funds on behalf of instirnsional investors through seven private real estate funds each of which had investment objectives

similar to ours but not limited to multifamily investments and which in the aggregate ultimately invested approximately $8 billion in approximately 250 separate transactions During such period Mr
Babb led or shared investment responsibility for over 75 investment transactions

totailng approximately $2.5 billion of asset value in more than 20 million
square

feet of residential office and industrial

properties located in 25 states and seven foreign counines including significant number of transactions that were contributed to the initial public offering of Equity Residential Properties Trust NYSE
EQR and to create iStar Financial Inc NYSE SF1 Mr Babb was also active in Starwood Capitals efforts to expand its platform to invest in Europe From August 2003 to July 2007 Mr Babb founded

his own principal investment company Bluepoint Capital LLC Bluepoint was private real estate investment company focused on the acquisition development and/or redevelopment of residential and

commercial properties in the Northeast United States and Western Europe Mr Babb received degree in Economics in 1987 from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill

Jordan Raddy Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer Jordan Ruddy serves as the Senior Vice President and Chief Operating Officer of our company and of our advisor Mr Ruddy is also

the President and Chief Operating Officer for Bluerock which bejoined in 2002 Mr Ruddy has 20
years

of experience in real estate acquisitions finanninga management and dispositions

From 2000 to 2001 Mr Ruddy served as an investment banker at Bane of America Securities LLC where he was rmponsible for various types of real estate investment banking transactions

including equity offerings debt placements and asset sales From 1997 to 2000 Mr Ruddy served as Vice President of Amerimar Enterprises real estate company specializing in value added investments

nationwide where he managed acquisitions financings leasing asset management and dispositions involving over 1500000 square feet of commercial and multifamily real estate From 1995 to 1997 Mr
Ruddy served as an investment banker at Smith Barney Inc where he was responsible for various types

of real estate investment banking transactions including equity offerings debt placements and

asset sales From 1988 to 1993 Mr Ruddy served in the real estate department of The Chase Manhattan Bank most recently as Second Vice President Mr Ruddy received an M.B.A degree in Finance

and Real Estate in 1995 from The Wharton School of the University of Pennsylvania located in Philadelphia Pennsylvania and aBS degree with high honors in Economics in 1986 from the London

School of Economics located in London England

Jerold Norark Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer Mr Novack serves as Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of our company and our advisor Mr Novack has also served

as the Senior Vice President Chief Financial Officer of Bluerock since October 2004 Mr Novack has over 25
years

of
experience

in public and private financings operations and management

From June 1994 to April 2002 Mr Novack served in senior financial positions of New World Restaurant Group Inc now known as Einstein Noah Restaurant Group Inc NASDAQ BAGL
including as its Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer From 1982 to 1993 Mr Novack held various senior financial positions at several specialty retall chalns including Mercantile

Department Stores and Brooks Fashion Stores Mr Novack received .S degree in Aecounting in 1976 from
Brooklyn College City University of New York

Mirhael Konig Senior Vice President Secretary and General Counsel Mr Konig serves as the Senior Vice President and General Counsel of our company and our advisor Mr Konig has also served

as counsel for Bluerock and its affiliates since December 2004 Mr Konig has over 20 years of experience in law and business

From 1987 to 1997 Mr Konig was an attorney at the firms of Greenbaum Rowe Smith Davis and Ravin Sarasohn Cook Baumgarten Fisch Balme representing borrowers and lenders in

numerous fmancing transactions primarily involving
real estate distressed real estate and Chapter 11 reorganizations as well with respect to broad variety

of
litigation and corporate law matters From
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1998 to 2002 Mr Konig served as legal counsel including as General Counsel as New World Restaurant Group Inc now known as Einstein Noah Restaurant Group Inc NASDAQ BAGL From 2002

to December 2004 Mr Konig served as Senior Vice President of Roma Food Enterprises Inc where he led operations and the restructuring and sale of the privately held company with approximately $300

million in annual revenues Mr Konig received 3D degree cum laude in 1987 from California Western School of Law located in San Diego California and an M.B.A degree in Finance in i988 from San

Diego State University

Brian Bailey Independent Director Mr Bailey has served as one of our independent directom since January 2009 Mr Bailey has more than 15 years of experience in sourcing evaluating structuring

and managing private investments as well as years
of experience with real estate and real estate-related debt

financing

Mr Bailey founded and currently serves as the Managing Member of Carmichael Partners LLC private equity investment firm based in Charlotte North Carolina From December 2008 to

December 2009 Mr Bailey served as Senior Advisor of Carousel Capital LLC private equity investment firm From April 2000 to December 2008 Mr Bailey served as Managing Partner of Carousel

Capital Since its inception Carousel has made portfolio investments in morn than 25 operating companies and has coinplntnd numerous additional acquisitions
and

financings iclated to thissn portfolio

companies including sale leaseback transactions and has utilized such financings in several of its investments Mr Baileys duties at Caronsel Capital included sourcing and evaluating investment

opportunities managing the finns investment process serving on the firms Investment Committee managing the firms fundraising efforts and communications with its limited partners and Board of

Advisors and
serving as director on the boards of certain portfolio companies some of which have meaningful real estate assets on their balance sbeets Thus Mr Bailey has been involved in the

management of numerous real estate issues over the course of his involvement with sach portfolio companies From 1999 to 2000 Mr Bailey was team member of Foratmano Little Co private equity

firm in New York New York From 1996 to 1999 Mr Bailey was Principal at the Carlyle Group global private equity firm in Washington D.C Earlier in his career Mr Bailey worked in the leveraged

boyout groop at CS First Boston in New York New York and in the mergers and acquisitions group
at Bowles Hoiloweil Conner Company in Charlotte North Carolina Mr Balley has also worked in the

public sector as Assistant to the Deputy Chief of Staff and Special Assistant lo lhe President at the White House from 1994 to 1996 and as Director of Strategic Planning and Poliry at the U.S Small

Business Administration in 1994 He currently serves as director of the Telecommunications Development Fund private equity investment fund headquartered in Washington DC and as trustee at

the North Carolina School of Scinncc and Mathematics Mr Bailey received BA degree in Mathematics and Economics in 1988 from the University of North Carolina at Chapel Hill and an M.B .A degree

in 1992 from the Stanford Graduate School of Business located in Stanford California

Bobby Majumder Independent Director Mr Majumder has served as one of our independent directors since January 2009 Mr Majnmder became partner at the law finn of KL Gates LLP in May
2005 where he specializes in corporate and securities transactions with an emphasis on the representation of underwriters placement agents and issuers in both public and private offerings private

investment in
public equity PIPE transactions and venture capital and

private equity
funds

From January 2000 so April 2005 Mr Majnmder was partner at the firm of Gardere Wynne Sewell LLP Through his law practice Mr Majumder has gained significant experinnce relating to the

acquisition of number of types of real properly assets including raw land improved real estate and oil and gas interests He is an active member of the Park Cities Rotary Club charter member of the

Dallas Chapter of The lndna Entrepreneurs and an Associates Board member of the Cox School of Business at Southern Methodist University Mr Majnmder received ID degree in 1993 from

Washington and Lee University School of Law located in Lexington Virginia and BA degree in 1990 from Trinity University located in San Antonio Texas

Romano Tb Independent Director Mr Tio has served as one of our independent directors since January 2009 Mr Tio serves as Managing Director at RJvI Capital Management LLC boutique

investment and advisory finn focused on investing in distressed commercial mortgages at discounts that provide attractive risk adjusted returns

From January 2008 to May 2009 Mr Tin served as Managing Director and co-head of the commercial reel estate efforts of HCP Real Estate Investors LLC an affiliate of Harbinger Capital

Partners Funds $10 billion private investment firm specializing in event/distressed strategirs From August 2003 until December 2007 Mr Tio was Managing Director at Carlton Group Ltd

boutique real estate investment hanking firm where he was involved in over $25 billion worth of commercial reel estate transactions Earlirr in his career Mr Tio was involved in real estate sales and

brokerage for 25 years Mr Tio erceived aBS degree in Biochemistry in 1982 from Hofstra University located in Hempstead New York

Selection of Directors
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In detenuining the composition of our Board of Directors our goal was to assemble gmup of individuals of sound character judgment and business acumen whose varied backgrounds

leadership experience and real estate experience would complement each other to bring diverse set of skills and perspectives to the board

Mr Kamlar who controls our sponsor was chosen to serve as the Chairman of the Board because as our Chief Executive Officer Mr Kamfar is well positioned to provide essential insight and

guidance to the hoard from the inside perspective of the day-to-day operations of the company Furthermore Mr Kamfar brings to the board approximately 20 years of eaperience in building operating

companies and in various aspects of real estate mergers
and acquisitions private equity investing public and private financings and retail operations His experience with complex financial and

operational issues in the real estate industry as well as his strong leadership ability and business acumen make him critical to
proper functioning of our hoard

Our Board of Directors selected Mr Babb to serve as one of our directors because of his extensive expertise in real estate acquisition management finance and disposition With more than 20

years of experience investing in and managing real estate investments Mr Babb offers key insights and perspective
with

respect to our real estate portfolio As one of our executive officers and the Chief

Investment Officer of our advisor Mr Eabb also informs and advises the board with respect to the critical operational issues facing our company

Our Board of Directors selected Mr Bailey aa one of our independent directors to leverage his extensive experience in sourcing evaluating structuring and managing private equity investments

and his experience related to real estate and real estate related debt financing In addition Mr Baileys prior service on the audit committees of numerous privately held companies provides him with the

requisite skills and knowledge to serve effectively on our audit committee

Our Board of Directors selected Mr Majumder as one of our independent directors due to his depth of legal experience
in advising clients with respect to corporate and securities transactions

including representations of underwriters placement agents and issuers in both public and private offerings Mr Majumder also brings with him significant legal experience relating to the acquisition of

numher of types of real estate assets

Our Board of Directors selected Mr Tin as one of our independent directors as result of his demonstrated leadership skill and industry-specific experience developed through number of high

level management positions with investment and advisory firma specialized in the cormnercial real estate sector

Code of Ethics and Whistlehlower Policy

Our Board of Directors adopted Code of Ethics Whistleblower Policy and
Corporate Governance Guidelines on January 142009 that applies to our principal executive officer principal financial

officer principal accounting officer controller and persons performing similar functions and aE members of our Board of Directors We believe these policies are reasonably designed to deter wrongdoing

and promote honest and ethical conduct full fair accurate timely and understandable disclosure in our reporting to our stockholders and the EEC compliance with applicable laws reporting of

violations of the code and accountability for adherence to the cede Copies of our Code of Ethics Whistleblower Policy and Corporate Governance Guidelines arc filed as exhibits to this Form 10

Item 11 Executive Compensation

ompencatirin of F.xei-iitive Officers

We are externally managed by our advisor and have no employees therefore we do not pay any compensation directly to our named executive officers Pursuant to our advisory agreement we

pay our advisor certaln fees and reimburse certain expenses See Certain Transactions with Related Persona below Included in the expenses for which we reimburse our advisor are compensation

reimburaementa for the portion of certaln of our named executive officers salaries and benefits allocated to us for their services related to our operations We do not reimburse compensation expenses
to

the extent such individuals perform services in transactions for which our advisor receives an acquisition fee origination fee or disposition fee

For the
years ended December 31 2009 and 2010 we are obligated to reimburse our advisor for compensation amounts it paid to our Chief Financial Officer for services rendered on our

hehalf For the year ended December 31 2010 we also obligated to reimburse our advisor for compensation amounts it paid to our Chief Operating Officer for services rendered on our behalf The

amounts we are obligated to reimburse to our advisor for compensation pald to our Chief Financial Officer and Chief Operating Officer were less than $100000 and as we reimbursed no amounts related to

our Chief Executive Officers compensation as smaller reporting company we
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have omitted discussion of compensation paid to our executive officers To the extent necessary to discharge any board responsibilities in the future relating to compensation of our executives our

board intends to appoint compensation committee composed of our independent directors Officers will be eligible for awards under our Incentive Plan however we currently do not intend to grant any

such awards and no awards have been granted to our executive officers under our Incentive Plan

Compensation of Directors

If director is also one of our executive officers we do not pay any compensation for services rendered as director The amount and form of compensation payable to our independent

directors for their service to us is determined by our Board of Directors based upon recommendations from our advisor Two of our executive officers Messrs Kamfar and Babb manage and control our

advisor and through the advisor they are involved in recommending and setting the compensation to be paid to our independent directors

We have provided below certain information regarding compensation earned by and paid to our directors during fiscal year 20 10

Pees Earned or Paid in Restricted Stock

Name Cash in 2010 Awards t2 Total

BrianDiley $33000 $151100 $481100

Bobby Majumder $32000 $15000 $47000

RomaooTio $33000 -$15000 $48000

JameaG.Babb1I10

Includes $1000 payment related to ajoint board of directomfaudit committee
meeting

held on November 112010 and paid in 2011 and the portion of the $25000 annual retainer paid
in 2010 for

services to he rendered in 2011 of $10016.67

t2 Value of vested portion of October 152009 and March 152010 restricted stock gmnts as of March 182011

Directom who are also our executive officers do not receive compensation for services rendered as director

We
pay each of our independent directors

an annual retainer of $25000

$2500 for each board meeting attended

$2000 for each committee meeting attended and

$1000 for each teleconference meeting of the board or any comsninee

All directors receive reimbursement of reasonable out-of-pocket expenses
incurred in connection with attendance at meetings of the Board of Directors

We have approved and adopted an independent directors compensation plan which operates as sub-plan of our Incentive Plan Under the independent directors compensation plan and

subject to such plans conditions and restrictions each of our current independent directors received 5000 shares of restricted stock on October 15 2009 the date our offering was declared effective by

the SEC Going forward each new independent director that joins the board will receive 5000 shares of restricted stock upon election or appointment to the board In addition on the date following an

independent directors re-election to the board he or she will receive 2500 shares of restricted stock Restricted stock will vest as to 20% of the shares on the date of grant and as to 20% of the shares on

each of the fsrst four anniversaries of the date of grant Notwithstanding the foregoing the restricted stock will become fully vested on the
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Item 12 Security Ownership Of Certain Beneficial Owners And Management And Related Stockholder Matters

Stock Ownership

The following table sets forth the beneficial owoership of our commoo stock as of March 18 201 tfor each person or group that holds more than 5% of our common stock for each director and executive

officer and for our directors and executive officers as group

Number of Shares Percent of

Name of Beneficial Owner Beneficially Owned Alt Shares

R.RaminKamfarp 24089 35%

James O.Babbffl

JordanB.Rttddy

Jerold Novack

MiehaelL.lCouig

BrianD.Balley 7800 1.17%

Bobby t4ajumde 7800 117%
RomanoTio 7752 1.16%

All äireetors andeyecutive officers ala grOup 47443 7.0%

The address of each beneficial owner listed is Heron Tower 70 East 55th Street 9th Floor New York New York 10022

None of the shares are pledged as security

As of March 182011 BEE Holdings LLC owned 23089 shares of our common stock all of which is issued and outstanding stock and our advisor owned 1000 shares of convertible stock all of

which is issued and outstanding Our advisor is controlled by BER Holdings LLC which is controlied by Mr Ksmfar Thus Mr Kamfar has the power to direct how BER Holdings LLC votes itt

shares of common stock

Equity Compensation Plan

We have adopted the Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc Long Term Incentive Plan which we refer to as the Incentive Plan in order to essble us to provide an incentive to our

employees officers directors and consultants and employees and officers of our advisor to increase the value of our common stock give
such

persons stake in our future that
corresponds to the

stake of each of our stockholders and obtain or retain the services of these persons who are considered essential to our long term success by offering such persons an opportunity to participate in

our growth through ownership of our common stock or through other equity-related awards We intend to issue awards only to our independent directors under our Incentive Plan which awards will be

granted under the independent directors compensation plan We have reserved and authorized an aggregate
number of 2000000 shares of our common stock for issuance under the Incentive Plan

The following table provides information about our common stork that may be issued upon the exercise of options warrants and rights under our incentive award plan as of December 312010
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Number of Securities

to Be Issued Upon Weighted-Average

Exercise of Exercise Price of Number of Securities

Outstanding Options Outstanding Options Remaining Available

---

Plan Category Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights for Future Issuance

Equity compensation plans approved by security holdersU 1977500

Equity compensation plans not approved by security holders

Total 1977500

We have
granted each of our independent

dicectom 5000 shares of restricted stock as of the commencement of the Initial Public Offering on October 152009 and 2500 shares of restricted stock as of

their reelection to the Board of Directors on March 15 2010 The restricted stock vests as to 20% of the shares on the date of grant and as to 20% of the shares on each of the first four anniversaries of

the date of the
grant thereafter

Item 13 Certain Relationships And Related Transactions And Director Independence

Director Independence

Although our shares are not listed foc trading on any national securities exchange majority of the members of our Board of Directors and all of the members of the audit committee are

independent An independent director is
person

who is not one of our officers or employees or an officer or employee of our advisor or its affiliates and has not been so for the previous two years

Serving as director of or having an ownership interest in another program sponsored by Bluerock will not by itself preclude independent director status The Board of Directors has determined that

Brian Bailey Bobby Majumder and Romano Tio each satisfy these criteria None of these directors has ever served as or is related to an employee of ours or any of our predecessors or acquired

companies or received or earned any compensation from us or any such other entities except for compensation directly related to service as director of us Therefore we believe that all of these

directors are independent directom

Certain Transactions with Related Persons

As described further below we have entered into agreements with certain affiliates pursuant to which they will provide services to us Our independent directors have reviewed the material

transactions between our affihistes and us since the beginning of 2010 as well as any such currently proposed transactions Set forth below is description of such transactions and the independent

directors determination of their fuirness

Our Relationship with Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Adriaor LW our Adrisor

Rasnin Kamfur our chairman of the board and chief executive officer indirectly owns BER Boldings LLC the sole owner of our advisor Mr Kamfar
actively participates

in the management

and operations of the advisor Since our inception our advisor has provided day-to-day management of our business Among the services provided by our advisor under the terms of the advisory

agreement are the following

finding presenting and recommending to us real estate investment opportunities consistent with our investment policies and objectives

structuring the ternss and conditioss of our real estate investments sales and joint ventures

acquiring properties and other investments on our behalf in compliance with our investment objectives and policies

sourcing and structuring our loan originations

arranging for financing and refinancing of properties and our other investments

entering into leases and service contracts for our properties

supervising and evaluating each property managers performance

reviewing and analyzing the properties operating and capital budgets

assi$ing ui in obtaining insurance
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generating an annual budget for us

reviewing and analyzing financial information for each of our assets and the overall portfolio

formulating and overseeing the implemenlation of strategies for the administration promotion management operation maintenance improvement financing and refinancing marketing leasing

and disposition of our properties and other inveatmenta

performing investor relations services

maintaining our accounting and other records and assisting ua in filing all reports required to be filed with the SEC the IRS and other regulatory agenciea

engaging and supervising the performance of our agents including our registrar and transfer agent and

performing any other services reasonably requested by us

Our advisor ia aubject to the
supervision

of our Board of Directors and
only

has such
authority as we may delegate to it as our agent The advisory agreement has one year term expiring

October 15 2011 and may be renewed for an unlimited number of successive one year periods upon the mutual consent of our adviaor and us Additionally either party may terminate the advisory

agreement without penalty upon 60 days written notice and in such event our advisor must cooperate with us and our directors in making an orderly tranaition of the adviaory function We have

compensated our advisor pursuant to the advisory agreement as set forth below

Our advisor or its affiliates may pay some of our organiantion and offering coats other than selling commiaaiona and dealer manager fees incurred in connection with our ongoing public

offering including our legal accounting printing mailing
and filing fees We reimburse our advisor for theae costa but only to the extent that the reimbursement would not cause aelling commissions

the dealer manager fee and other organization and offering expenses home by us to exceed 15% of the gross offering proceeds of our ongoing public offering In addition our advisor is obligated to

reimbume us to the extent selling commissions the dealer manager fee and other
organization and offering coats incurred by us in the offering exceed 15% of

gross offering proceeds As of December 30
2010 the advisor has incurred on our behalf organiantion and offering costa of approximately $2.g million of which $508000 has been reimbursed to the advisor in 2010 We met the minimum number of

shares in the Initial Public Offering on May 202010 and the coats paid by the advisor on our behalf became liability to us to the extent selling commissions the dealer manager fee and other organization

and offering costs do not exceed 15% of the
gross proceeda of the Initial Public Offering As of December 312010 we had recognized organization and offering costs other than selling commissions and

dealer manager fees of $1.3 million of which $832000 was incurred directly by us and $508000 was rimbursed to the advisor When recorded by us organization costs were expensed
and offering costs

which include selling commissions and dealer manager fees are charged to stockholders equity No organiantion
and offering costs were recognized as of December 31 2009 at the minimum number of

shares of our common stock had not been issued

We incur acquisition fees payable to our advisor equal to 1.75% of the coat of our acquired investments including acquisition expenses
and

any
debt attributable to such investments With

respect to investments in and originations of loans in lieu of an acquisition fee we pay our advisor an origination fee equal to 1.75% of the amount funded by us to acquire or originate mortgage

mezzanine bridge or other loans including any expenses related to such investment and any debt we use to fund the acquisition or origination of the loan Acquisition and origination fees relate to

services provided
in connection with the selection and acquisition or origination of real eatate and real estate-related investments Acquisition fees tomied approximately $363000 and $192000

respectively for the years ended December 312010 and 2009 which were expensed when incurred We paid no origination fees during the periods

In addition to acquisition
and

otigination fees we reimburse our advisor for amounts that it
pays

in connection with the selection acquisition or development of property or the selection and

acquisition or origination of real estate related investment whether or not we ultimately acquire the asset From Januasy 12010 through December 312010 our advisor and its affiliates did not incur any

such coats

For asset management aervices we pay our advisor monthly fee equal to one-twelfth of 1.0% of the higher of the cost or value of each asset where cost excludes acquisition fees and expenses

but includes any debt attributable to the asset as well as any coats we expend to develop conatmct or improve an asset and where value is the fair market value eatabliahed by an independent
valuation

report However 50% of the asset management fee will not be
payable until stockholders have received distributions in an amount equal to at least 6.0%

per annum cumulative non-compounded

return As of June 12010 we had satisfied this requirement and 100% of the asset
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incurred

Under our advisory agreement our advisor and its affiliates have the right to seek reimbursement from us for all costs and expenses they incur in connection with their provision of services to us

including our allocable share of our advisors overhead such as rent employee costs utilities and information technology costs We do not however reimburse our advisor for personnel costs in

connection with services for which our advisor receives acquisition origination or disposition fees or for personnel costs related to the salaries of our executive officers From January 2009 through

December 312010 our advisor and its sfflhistes incurred approximately $677000 of operating expenses on our behalf which amount has not yet been reimbursed as of March tg 2011 Our charter limits

our total operating expenses
st the end of four preceding fiscal qusrters to the greater of 2% of our average

invested assets or 25% of our net income determined without reductions for
any

additions to reserves for depreciations bad debts or other similar non-cash reserves and excluding any gain from the sale of our assets for the period unless majority or our independent directors

delennines that such
expenses were justified based on unusual and non-recurring factors Due to the limitations discussed shove and because operating expenses incurred directly by us have exceeded

the 2% threshold the amount due to the advisor has not been recorded on our income statement Further approximately $974000 has been recorded as receivable from the sdvisor for the excess

operating expenses over the 2% threshold incurred directly by us On March 222011 nor Board of Directors including all of our independent directors reviewed our total operating expenses for the four

fiscal quarters ended December 312009 and the four fiscal quarters ended each quarter after and the four fiscal quarters to end March 31 2011 and unsalmously determined the excess lobe justified

because of the costs of operating public company and our early stages of operating Upon this approval these costs totaling approximately $1.7 million were expensed and $677000 became liability

to us

The independent directors reviewed our relationship with our advisor during 2010 and considered it In be fair The independent directors believe that the amounts payable to the advisor under

the advisory agreement are similar to those psid by other publicly offeredunlisted externally advised REITs and that this compensation is necessary in order for the advisor to provide the desired level of

services to us and our stockholders

Other Services Provided by Affiliates

In addition to the services described above to be
provided by our advisor and its affiliates affiliates of our advisor may provide other property

level services to our company and may receive

compensation for such services including lessing loan servicing property lax reduction and risk management fees However under no circumstances will such compensation exceed an amount that

would be paid to non affiliated third parties for similar services majority of the independent directors must approve all compensation for such other services paid to our advisor or any of its affiliates

Sponsors Agreement In Provide Us Financial Support and to Defer Payment of Certain Fees

On March 282011 our sponsor Blueroek Real Estate LLC confirmed its agreement to provide financial support to us sufficient for us to satisfy all of our obligations and debt service

requirements as they come dae until at least January 12012 and will satisfyon timely basis aIl of our liabilities and obligations that we are unable to satisfy when due from March 282011 through
and

including January 12012 In addition our sponsor
has agreed to defer payment of current year property

and asset management fees and operating expenses
that are allocated to us acquisition fees

property and asset management fees and other costs and operating expenses which have been seemed as of December 312010 and offering costs advanced on our behalf In addition our sponsor

which has management control of the affiliates that are lenders to us has the authority to extend and will extend the notes beyond December 312011 depending on our ability to repay
those obligations

Propased Transition to Affiliated Dealer Manager

We are in the process of seeking regulatory approval to transfer the dealer manager duties for this offering from our current dealer manager Select Capital Corporation
third

party to Halcyon

Capital Markets L.LC our affiliate An affiliate of ow sponsor BR Capital Markets LLC
currently owns 20% interest in Halcyon Capital Markets and the mmsining 80% interest is owned by Halcyon

Holdings LLC BR Capital Markets is 100% owned by Rssoin Kamfar principal of oar sdvisor We expect that prior to Halcyon Capital Markets assuming dealer manager mspensibiities for this

offering BR Capital Markets will
acquire an 80% interest in Halcyon Capital Markets

We expect thar upon receipt of all required regulatory approvals Halcyon Capital Markets will assume the role of dealer manager for the remainder of the offering period We are currently

negotiating the terms of the dealer manager agreement with Halcyon Capital Markets however we expect the terms would be substantially the same as our current dealer manager agreement
with Select

Capital Corporation Pursuant to the terms of our current dealer manager agreement our dealer manager receives selling commission of 7% of the
gross proceeds from the sale of shares of our common

stork in the primary offering Our dealer manager also receives 2.6% of the gross proceeds from the sale of shares in the primary offering in the form of dealer manager fee as compensation for acting as

our dealer manager Our dealer manager dnes nor receive any selling commission or dealer manager fee for shares sold pursuant to our distribation reinvestment plan We also reimburse our dealer

manager for bona fide due diligence expenses incurred and supported by detailed and itemized invoices
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Affiliate Loans

In connection with our investment in the Spriughouse joint venture on December 2009 BEMT Spcinghouse LLC wholly-owned subsidiary
of our operatiug partnership BEMT

Springhouse entered into loan agreement with Bluerock Special Opportunity Income Fund BEMT Co Investor pursuant to which BEMT Springhouse borrowed $2.8 million the BEMT Co

Investor Springhouse Loan The BEMT Co-Investor Springhouse Loan initially had six month term maturing June 2010 which was subsequenlly extended to December 32010 and again to June

2011 partial repayment in the amount of $1.1 million was made on June 23 2010 It hears interest compounding monthly at rate of 30-day LIBOR 5.00% subject Io minimum rate of 7.00%

annualized For the years ended December 31 20t0 and 2009 the interest rate on the BEMT Co-Investor Springhouse Loan was 7.00% Interest on the loan will be paid on current basis from cash flow

distributed to us from BR Springhouse Managing Member LLC the Springhouae Managing Member JV Entity The BEMT Co-Investor Springhouse Loan is secured by pledge of our indirect

membership interest in the Springhouse property and pledge of BEMT Springhouses membership interest in the Spriughouse Managing Member JV Entity

In connection with our investment in the Creekside joint venture on March 31 2010 BEMT Creekside entered into loan agrecment with BEMT Co Investor II pursuant to which it was

authorized to borrow up to $1.1 million the BEMT Co-Investor II Creekside Luanwith reapct to which BEMT Cu-Investor II had advanced $542000 in connection with closing The BEMT C0

Investor II Creekaide Loan had six-month term maturing December 312010 and could be prepaid without penalty It bore interest compounding monthly at rate of 30-day LIBOR 5.00% subject to

minimum rate of 7.00% annualized The BEMT Co Investor It Creekaide Loan was secured by pledge
of our indirect membership interest in the Creekside

property
and pledge of BEMT Creeksidea

membership interest in the Creekaide Managing Member JV Entity The loan plus accrued interest wm paid in full on September 282010

In connection with our investment in the Meadowmont joint venture on April 92010 BEMT Meadowmont LLC entered into loan agreement with BEMT Co Investor II pursuant to which it

waa authorized to borrow up to $2.6 million the BEMT Co Investor II Meadowmont Loan with respect to which BEMT Co Investor It advanced $t .4 million with respect to the acquisition The BEMT

Co-Investor II Meadowmont Loan had six month term maturing October 2010 and could be prepaid without penalty It bore intereat compounding monthly at rate of 30-day LIBOR 5.00% subject

to minimum rete of 7.00% annualized The BEMT Co-Investor II Meadowmont Loan was secured by pledge of our indirect membership interest in the Meadowmont property and pledge of BEMT
Meadowmonts membership intermt in the Meadowmont Managing Member JV Entity The loan plus accrued interest was pald in full on June 82010

In connection with our investment in the Augusta joint venture on September 12010 BEMT Augusta entered into loan agreement
with BEMT Co Investor pumuant to which it borrowed $1.9

million the BEMT Co Investor Augusta Loan in connection with the Augusta Property closing The BEMT Co Investor Augusta Loan initially had aix-month term maturing February 282011 which

was subsequently extended to August 312011 The loan may be prepaid without penalty It hears interest compounding monthly at rate of 30-day LIBOR 5.00% subject to minimum rete of 7fl0%

annualized Interest on the loan will be paid on current basis from cash flow distributed to us from the Augusta Managing Member JV Entity The BEMT Co-Investor Augusta Loan is secured by

pledge of our indirect membership interest in the Augusta property and pledge of BEMT Augustas membership interest in the Augusta Managing MemberJV Entity

In connection with our investment in the Hillaboro joint venture on September 302010 BEMT Hilisboro entered into loan agreement
with BEMT Co-Investor II pursuant to which it borrowed

$13 million the BEMT Co-Investor Hillsboro Loan The BEMT Co-Investor It Hifisboro Loan initially had six-month term maturing March 31 2011 which was subsequently extended to September

302011 The loan maybe prepaid without penalty It bears interest compounding monthly at ante of 30-day LIBOR 5.00% subject to minimum rete of 7.00% annualized Interest on the loan will be

paid on current basis from nnah flow distributed to us from the Hillsboro Managing Member JV Entity The BEMT Co-Investor II Hilisboro Loan is secured by pledge of our indirect membership

interest in the Hillsboro property and pledge of BEMT Hlllsberos membership interest in the Hillsboro Managing Member JV Entity

In accordance with the requirements of our charter the affiliate loans were reviewed and approved by majority of our Board of Directors including majority of our independent directors as

being fair competitive and commercially reasonable and no less favorable to us than loans between unaffiliated parties under the same circumstances Furthermore due to the unique investment

opportunities presented including the opportunity to distinguish ourselves competitively from other early stage non traded REITs our
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Board of Directors expressly considered and approved leverage in excess of our general charter-imposed limitations in connection with entering into the affiliate loans

hem 14 Principal Accoimfing Fees and Services

Independent Auditors

KPMG LLP has served as our independent auditors since August 232010 The appointment of KPMG LLP as our independent public accountants was unanimously approved by the Board of

Directors KPMG LLP is the successor to our former independent auditors Freedman Goldberg Freedman Freedman served as our independent auditors from our formation until August 232010

The aggregate fees billed to us for professional accounting services including the audit of our annual financial statements by Freedman Goldberg FGfor the
years

ended December 31

2010 and 2009 and by KPMG LLP for the
year

ended December 312010 are set forth in the table below

2010 2009

Audit fees

FG $85440 $31030

KPMG 95000

Audit related fees

FO 97560 66278

KPMG
Taxfees 1610

AU other fees

Total $2784300 $98918

For
purposes

of the preceding table professional fees are classified as follows

Audit fees Tbese are fees for professional services performed for the audit of our annual financial statements and the required review of quarterly financial statements and other

procedures performed by Freedman Goldberg in order for them to be able to form an opinion on our consolidated financial statements These fees also cover services that are normally

provided by independent auditors in connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements

Audit-related fees These are fees for assurance and related services that traditionally are performed by independent auditors that are reasonably related to the performance of the

audit or review of the financial statements such as due diligence related to acquisitions and dispositions attestation services that are not required by statute or regulation internal control

reviews and consultation concerning financial accounting and
reporting standards

Tax fees These are fees for all professional services performed by professional staff in our independent auditors tax division except those services related to the audit of our

financial statements These include fees for tax compliance tan planning and tax advice including federal state and local issues Services may also include assistance with tax nudits and appeals

before the IRS and similar state and local agencies as well as federal state and local tax issues related to due diligence

AU other fees Tbese are fees for any services not included in tbe above-described categories

Pre-Approval Policies

In order to ensure that the provision of such services does not impair the auditors independence the audit comminee approved on January 14 2009 an Audit Comminee Ike approval Folicy

fur Audit and No audit Services In establishing this policy the audit committee considered whether tbe service is permissible service under the rnles and regulations promulgated by the SEC In

addition the audit committee may in its discretion delegate one or more of its members the authority to pre-approve any audit or non audit services to be performed by the independent auditors

provided any
such approval is presented to and approved by the full audit committee at its next scheduled meeting

Since Dctober 15 2009 when we became reporting company under Section 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 all services rendered by our independent auditors have been pre

approved in accordance with the policies and procedures described above
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PART IV

Item 15 Exhibits Financial Statement Scbedules

List of Documents Filed

Financial Statements

The list of the financial statements filed as part of this Annual Report on Form 10 is set forth on page herein

Exhibits

The exhibits frIed in response to Item 601 of Regulation are listed on the Exlsibit Index attached hereto

Financial Statement Schedules

All financial statement schedules have been omitted because the required information of such schedules is not present is not present in amounts sufficient to require schedule or is included in

the financial statements

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15d of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 theregistrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned thereunto duly

authorized

BLUEROCE ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC

DATE March 31 2011 IsI Ramin Kamfar

Ramin Kamfar

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Principal Executive Officer

Parsuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 this report has bcen signed below by the following persons on behalf of the registrant and in the capacities and on the dates

indicated

BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC

DATE March 31 2011 /s/ Ramin Kamfar

Rainin Kamfar

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Principal Executive Officer

DATE March 312011 /5/ Jerold Novack

Jerold Novack

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

DATE March 312011 1sf Brian Bailey

Brian Bailey

Director

DATE March 31 2011 Is/I Bobby Majumder

Bobby Majumder

Director

DATE March 31 2011 /s/ Rrsmano Tio

Romano Tio

Director
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Btuerock Enhanced Multifamily Trsat Inc and subsidiaries aa of December t2010 and the related consolidated atatements of

operations stockholders equity and cash flows for the
year

then ended These consolidated finsncial statements are the
responsibility

of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an

opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those stundards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the

financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation

We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the finsnciat position of Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc and subsidiaries as of

December31 2010 and the results of their operations
and their cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting principles

1sf KPMG LLP

Indianapolis Indiana

March 31.2011
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

Bluecock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheet of Bluecock Enhanced
Multifamily Trust Inc as of December 312009 and the related consolidated statement of operations stockholdecs

equity and cash flow for the year then ended These consolidated financial statements are the ceaponaibility of the Companys management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these

financial statements based on our audits

We conducted out audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain

reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement The Company is not required to have nor were we engaged to perform an audit of its internal control over

financial reporting Our audits included consideration of internal control over financial
reporting as basis for designing audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances but not for the

purpose

of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Companya internal control over financial reporting Accordingly we express no such opinion An audit also includes examining on test basin

evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall

financial statement presentation We believe that our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In our opinion the fmancial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respecta the consolidated financial position of Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc as of December 312009
and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America

1sf Freedman Goldberg CPAa PC

Farmingtoe Hills Ml

March 31 2010

F3



BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

As of December 31
2010 2009

ASSETS

Investments in unconsolidated real estate joint ventures 6301860 2385450

Cssh snd cash equivalents 125237 186863

Dne from affiliates 524248

Other assets 82679
__________________

TOTAL ASSETS 7034024 2572313

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Notes payable to affiliates 4834578 2754520

Accounts payable 219686 15320

Other accrued liabilities 261495

Dne to affiliates 18281

Distributions payable 40286

Total liabilities 5356J345 2788121

Redeemable common stock 63334

Stoekholdera equity

Preferred stock $0.01
par value 250000000 shares

authorized none issued and outstanding

Common stock $0.01 par valne 749999000 shares authorized

677618 and 37200 shares issued sod outstanding as of

December 312010 and 2009 respectively 6776 372

Nonvoting convertible stock $0.01 par value per share

1000 shares authorizedissued and outstanding 10 10

Additional paid in-capital net of costs 4586644 222731

Cumulative distributions and net losses 2978785 438921

Total stockholders equity 1614645 215808

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY 7034024 2572313

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

For the years ended December31

2010 2009

Expenam

Asset management and oversight fees to affitiates 223436 9140

Acquisition costs to affiliates 362766 191953

Ceoerat and administrative 314691 45391

Total
expenses 900893 246484

Other operating activities

Equity in toss of unconsolidated joint ventures NoteS 1147224 177117

Operating loss 2040117 423601

Other expense

Interest
expense to affiliates net 258753 15320

Total other expense 258753 15320

Net loss 2306870 438921

Basic and diluted loss
per

share 6.95 t7.28

Weighted average
number of shares outstanding 333701 25405

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Convertible Stock Common Stock

Total

Number of Number of Additional Cumulative Stockholders

Shares Par Value Shares Par Value Paid in Capital Distributions Net loss Equity

1000$ 10 22200$ 222$ 200769$ 201001

15000 150 36100 36250

14138 14138

_______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________ _______________
438921 438921

1000 10 37200 372 222231 438921 215808

7500 75 56800 56875

632918 6329 4370447 4376776

63334 63334
232994 232994

2306870 2306870

1000 10 677618 6776 4586644 232994 2745791 1614645

Ba1anceJanuai 12009
Issuance of restricted stocknet

Deferred offering costs

Net Loss

Balance December 312009

Issuance of restricted stock net

Issuance of common stock net

Transfers to redeemable common stock

Distributions declared

Net loss

Balance December 312010

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to net cash used in opersting activities

Equity iu loss of unconsolidated joint ventures

Distributions from unconsolidated real estate joint ventures

Share based compensation charge attributable to

directors stock compensation plan

tncrease in due to/from affiliates

Increase in other assets

Increase in accounts payable and other accrued liabilities

Net cash uaed in
operating activities

Cash flows from Investing Activities

Investment to unconsolidated real estate joint venture

Net cash used in
investing activities

Cash flows from Financing Activities

Distributtons on common stock

Proceeds from notes payable

Repayment on uotes payable

Issuance of common stock net

Payment of offering costs

Net cash provided by financing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash eqnivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents end of period

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information

Interest Paid

Snpplemental Disclosure of Noncash Transactioes

Distributinus
payable

Distributions paid to common stockbolders through cormoon stock

issnances pursuant to the distribution reinvestment plan

For the
years ended December31

2010 2009

2306t70 431921

1147224 177117

32013

56175 36250

542529 lt2t1

12679

465161 15320

170105 191953

BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 31 2010 and DECEMBER 312009

ORGANIZATION Aid NATURE OF BUSINESS

Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc the Company was incorporated on July 25 2008 under the laws of the state of Macyland If we meet the qualification requirements we intend to

elect to be treated as real estate investment trust or REIT for Federal income tax purposes We were incorporated to raise capital and acquire diverse portfolio of residential real estate assets Our day

to-day operations are managed by Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Advisor LLC or our advisor under an advisory agreement Our advisor is affiliated with us in that we and our advisor have common

ownership and management The use of the words we us or our refers to Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc and its subsidiary Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Holdings L.P or our

operating partnership exrept where the context otherwise requires

On August 22 2001 we filed regiatration statement on Form It with the Securities and Exchange Commission the SEC to offer maximum of $1000000000 in shares of our common stock

in our primary offering at an offering price of $10.00 per share with discounts available for certain categories of purchasers and up to $215000000 in shares pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan

at $950 per share the Initial Public Offering The SEC declared our registration statement effective on October 152009 and we have retained Select
Capital Corporation to serve as the dealer manager

of the Initial Public Offering The dealer manager is responsible for marketing our shares in the initial public offering As of May 202010 we had received gross offering proceeds sufficient to satisfy the

minimum offering amount for the Initial Public Offering Accordingly we broke escrow with rmpect to subscriptions received from all states in which our shares are currently being offered As of

December 312010 we had accepted aggregate gross offering proceeds of $6204 p30

We intend to use substantially all of the net proceeds from the Initial Public Offering to invest in diveme portfolio of real estate and real estate-related assets As of December 312010 we own
though joint ventare partnerships five multifamily real estate propertim discussed in detail in Note Investments in Real Estate

Our offering wm suspended from November 17 2010 until March 2011 in connection with our deternaination to restate certain of our financial statements These restatements resulted in

substantial unanticipated coats in the form of accounting legal fees and similar professional fees in addition to the substantial diversion of time and attention of our Chief Financial Officer and members

of our accounting team in preparing the restatements Although the restatement ix complete we can give no assurances that we will not incur additional costa associated with the restatements Our

current corporate operating expenses exceed the cash flow received from our investments in real estate joint ventares If the rate at which we raise offering proceeds does not improve significantly our

general
and administrative coats will remain higher

relative to the size of our portfolio our portfolio may not be as diversified as it would he otherwiae and we may need to seek additional sources

funding to address our abort and long term liquidity requirements Moreover we cannot predict the impact of the restatement on our ability to increase sales To the extent cash on hand is not sufficient

to meet our short-term liquidity requirements we expect to utilize credit facilities obtained from affiliates or unaffiliated third parties Our sponsor
has also agreed to defer payment of asset management

fees acquisition fees and operating and offering coats advanced on our behalf and current year
reimbursable operating expenses through 2011 as well as to fund

any remaining cash shortfall as

necessary In addition as our sponsor has management control of the affiliates that are lenders to us and thus baa the authority to extend the notes that have matarities in 2011 it has committed to extend

such notes based on our ability to repay
those obligations

SUM1IARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Principles of Consolidation and Basis of Presentation

We
operate as an umbrella partnership REIT atructare in which our wholly-owned subsidiary Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Holdings L.P Delaware limited partnemhip or wholly-owned

aubsidiariea of our operating partnership owns substantially all of the properties or investments in joint ventares acquired on our behalf

Because we are the sole general partner of our opemting partnership
and have unilateral control over its management and major operating decisions even if additional limited

partners are

admitted to our operating partnership the accounts of our operating partnership are consolidated in our companys consolidated financial statements All significant intercompany accounts and

transactions are eliminated in consolidation We will considerfutare majority owned and controlled joint ventarea for consolidation in accordance with the provisions required by the Consolidation Topic

of the Financial Accounting Standards Board FASB Accounting Standards Cedification the ASC

Joint Ventures

We analyze our investments in joint ventares to determine if the joint venture is variable interest entity VIE and would require consolidation We evaluate the sufficiency of the total

equity at risk review the voting rights and decision making authority of the equity investment holders ax group and whether there are any guaranteed returns protection against lossea or capping

of residual returns within the group and establish whether activities within the ventare are on behalf of an investor with
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BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

disproportionately few votieg rights
in making this VIE determination We would consolidate venture that is determined to be VIE if we were the primary beneficiary Beginniog January 12010 new

accounting standard became effective that changed the method by which the primary beneficiary of VIE is determined to primarily qualitative approach whereby the variable interest holder if any that

has the power to direct the VIEs most significant activities is the primary beneficiary To the extent that our joint ventures do not qualify as VIEs we further assess the existence of controlling financial

interest under voting interest model to determine whether the venture should be consolidated

Use of Eslimates

The
preparation of the financial statements in conformity with GAAP

requires management to make estimates and
assumptions

that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and

disclnsure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period At the property level these

estimates include such items as purchase price allocation of real estate acquisitions impairment of long-lived assets depreciation and amortization and allowance for doubtful accounts Actual results

could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid
investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents

Cash equivalents may include cash and short-term investments

Short-term investments are stated at cost which approximates fair value There are no restrictions on the use of our cash as of December 312010

Deferred Financing Fees

Deferred financing fees paid by us on behalf of our joint ventures are recorded at cost within investments in unconsolidated real estate joint ventures and are amortized to equity in loss of

unconsolidated joint ventures using straight line method that apprnximates the effective interest method over the life of the related joint venture debt

Stock-Based Compenaation

We account for stock based compensation in accordance with the provisions of the Stock Compensation Topic of the FASB ASC This topic established fair value based method of accounting

for stock based compensation and requires the fair value of stock based compensation awards to amortize as an expense over the vesting period and requires any dividend equivalents esmed to be

treated as dividends for financial reporting purpnses Stock-based compensation awards are valued at the falr value on the date of grant and amortized ss an
expense

over the vesting period For the
year

ended December 31 2009 5000 shares of comsnnn stock were awarded to each of the three independent directom upon effectiveness of our initial public offering on October 15 2009 and for the year

ended December 3120102500 shares of common stock were awarded upon their reelection to our Board of Directnrs on March 152010

Distribution Policy

We intend to elect to be taxed as PElT and to operate REIT beginning with our taxable year ending December 31 2010 To maintain our qualification as REIT we are required to make

distributinns each taxable
year equal to at lemt 90% of our REIT annual taxable income excluding net capital gains and income from operations or sales through taxable REIT subsidiary or TRS We

expect to authorize and declare dally distributions that will be paid on monthly basis

Distributions to stoclrisolders will be determined by our Board of Directors and will be dependent upon number of facturs relating to the Company including funds available for the payment of

distributinns financial condition the timing of property acquisitions capital expenditure requirements and annual distributinn requirements in order to maintain our status as REIT under the Internal

Revenue Code of 1986 as amended the Code and other considerations as our Board of Directors may deem relevant

Related Party Transactions

Pursuant to the Advisory Agreement we are obligated to pay the Advisor specified fees upon the provision of certain services related to the investment of funds in real estate and real estste

related investments management of our investments and for other services including but not limited to the disposition of investments We are also obligated to reimburse the Advisor for organization

and offering costs incurred by the Advisor on our behalf and we are obligated to reimburse the Advisor for acquisition and origination
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

expenses
snd certain operating expenses

incurred on our behalf or incurrcd in connection with providing services to us We record all related party fees as incurred subject to any limitations described

in the Advisory Agreement

Organization and Offering Coats

Our organization and offering costs other than selling commissions and the dealer manager fee are being paid directly by us and by the advisor the dealer manager or their affiliates on our

behalf These other organization and offering costs include all
expenses to be paid by us in connection with our public offering including but not limited to legal accounting printing mailing and filing

fees ii charges of the escrow holder and transfer agent iii charges of the advisor for administrative services related to the issuance of shares in the offering iv reimbursement of the dealer manager

for amounts it may pay to reimburse the bona fide diligence expenses of broker-dealers reisubursement to the advisor for costs in connection with preparing supplemental sales materials vi the cost

of bona fide training and education meetings held by us primarily the travel meal and lodging costs of registered representatives of broker-dealers vii reimbursement to the dealer manager for

attendance and sponsorship fees and cost reimbursements for employees of the dealer manager to attend retail seminars conducted by broker-dealers and viii in special cases reimbursement to

participating broker-dealers for technology costs associated with the offering costs and expenses related to such technology costs and costs and expenses associated with the facilitation of the

marketing of the shares in the offering and the ownership of the shares by such broker-dealers customers Pursuant to the advisory agreement and the dealer manager agreement we are obligated to

reimburse the advisor the dealer manager or their affiliates as applicable for organization and offering costs pald by them on our behalf provided
that the advisor is obligated to reimburse us to the

extent selling commissionsthe dealer manager fee and other organization and offering costs incurred by us in the
offering

exceed t5% of
gross offering proceeds As of December 312010 and December

31 2009 the advisor has incurred on our behalf organization and offering costs of approalmately $2.8 million and $24 million respectively of which $508000 has been reimbursed to the advisor We met

the minimum number of sbares in the Initial Public Offering on May 202010 and the costs paid by the advisor on our behalf became liability to us to the extent selling comsnissions the dealer manager

fee and other organization and offering costs do not exceed 15% of the gross proceeds of the Initial Public Offering As of December 31 2010 we bad recognized organization and offering costs other

than selling commissions and dealer manager fees of $1.3 million of which $832000 was incurred directly by us and $508000 was reimbursed to the advisor No organization and offering costs were

recognized as of December 31 2009 as the minimum number of shares of our common stock had not been issued When recorded by us organization costs were expensed and offering costs which

include selling commissions and dealer manager fees are charged to stockholders equity

Operating Expenses

We reimburse the advisor for all reasonable and incurred
expenses

in connection with services provided to us subject to the limitation that we will not reimburse any amount that would cause

our total operating expenses at the end of four preceding fiscal quarters to exceed the greater of 2% of our average invested assets or 25% of our net income determined without reductions for any

additions to reserves for depreciation bad debts or other similar non-casb reserves and excluding any galn from the sale of our assets for the period unless majority of our independent directors has

determined such expenses were justified based on unusual and non recurring factors If such excess expenses are not approved by majority of our independent directors our advisor must reimburse us

at the end of the four fiscal
quarters

the amount by which the
aggregate expenses during the period pald or incurred by us exceed the limitations provided above We will not reimburse the advisor for

personnel costs in connection with services for which the advisor receives acquisition origination or disposition fees As of December 312010 approximately $677000 of operating expenses have been

incurred on our behalf Due to the limitations discussed above and because operating expenses incurred directly by us have exceeded the 2% esholdthe amount due to the advisor has not been

recorded on our income statement Further approximately $974000 has been recorded as receivable from the advisor for the excess operating expenses incurred directly by us On March 22201 our

Board of Directors including all of our independent directors reviewed our total operating expenses for the four fiscal quarters ended December 312009 and the four fiscal quarters ended each quarter

tbereafter and the four fiscal quarters to end March 312011 and unanimously determined the excess to be justified because of the costs of operating public company and our early stages of

operating Upon this approval these costs totaling approximately $1.7 million were expensed and $677000 became liability to us Our advisor has agreed to defer repayment of these costs until later

date
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Selling Commissions and Dealer Manager Fees

We pay the dealer manager up to 7% and 2.6% of the gross offering proceeds from the primary offering as selling commissions and dealer manager fees respectively reduced sales commission

and dealer manager fee is paid wish respect to certain volume discount sales No salns commission or dealer manager faa is paid with respect to shames issued through
the dividend reinvestment plan The

dealer manager reallows 100% of sales commissions earned to participating broker-dealers The dealer manager may reallow to any participating broker-dealer up to 1% of the gross offering proceeds

attributable to that participating broker-dealer as marketing fee and in special cases the dealer manager may increase the reallowance As of December 312010 the Company had incurred approximately

$565000 of selling commissions and dealer manager fees the Company had incurred no selling commissions and dealer manager fees as of December 31 2009 as the minimum number of shares of our

common stock had not been issued

Acquisition and Origination Fees

We pay the Advisor an acquisition fee equal to 1.75% of the cost of investments acquired including acquisition expenses and any debt attributable to such investments With respect to

investments in and originations of loans we pay an origination fec equal to 1.75% of the amount funded by us to acquire or originate mortgage mezzanine bridge or other loans including any expenses

related so such investments and any debt we use to fund the acquisition or origination of these loans We do not pay an acquisition fee with respect to investments in loans For the years ended

December 312010 and 2009 we had incurred approximately $363000 and $192000 respectively of acquisition fees

Asset Management Fee

With respect so investments in real eslale we pay the advisor monthly asset management fee equal to one twelfth of 1% of she amount paid or allecated to acquire the investment excluding

acquisision fees and
expenses

related thereto and the amount of any debt associated wish or used to acquire such investment In the case of iuvustmuuuts made
through joint ventures the asset

management fee will be determined based on our proportionate share of the underlying investment For the
years

ended December 31 2010 and 2009 we had incurred approximately $223000 and $9000

respectively of asset management fees

Financing Fee

We pay the Advisors financing fee equal to 1% of the amount under
any

loan or line of credit made available to us As of December 312010 and 2009 we had incurred approximately $75000 and

$44000 respectively of fmancing fees

Independent Director Compensation

We pay each of our independent
directors an annual retainer of $25000 In addition the independent directors are paid for attending meetings as follows $2500 for each board meeting

attended ti $2000 for each committee meeting attended lli$1000 for each teleconference board meeting attended and iv $1000 for each teleconference committee meeting attended All directors also

receive reimbursement of reasonable out-of pocket expenses
incurred in connection with allendance at meetings of the Board of Directors In addition 5000 shares of restncted stock were granted upon

initial election to the board and 2500 shares of reslricted stock will be granted upon re-election to she board Director compensation is an operating expense of the Company thus is
subject to the operating

expense reimbursement obligation of the advisor discussed in Nose Related Party Transactions

Income Taxes

We intend to elect to be lazed as PElT under Sections 856 through 860 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986 as amended and intend to operate as such commencing with our taxable year

ended December 312010 We expect to have little or no taxable income prior to electing REIT slams To qualify as REIT we must meet certain organizational sod operational requirements including

requirement to distribute at least 90% of our annual REIT taxable income to stockholders which is computed without regard to the dividends paid deduction or net capital gain
and which does not

necessarily equal net income as calculated in accordance with GAAP As REIT we generally will not be subject so federal income tax to the extent we distribute qualifying dividends to our stockholders

Even if we qualify for taxation as REIT we may be subject to certain state and lecal taxes on our income and property and federal income and excise taxes on our undistributed income If we fail to

qualify as REIT in any taxable year we will be subject to federal
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

income tax on our taxable income at regular corporate income tax rates and generally will not be permitted to qualify for treatment as REIT for federal income tax purposes for the four taxable years

following
the

year during which qualification is lost unless the Internal Revenue Service
grants us relief under certain statutory provisions Such an event could materially adversely affect our net income

and net cash available for distribution to stockholders However we intend to organize and operate in such manner as to qualify for treatment as REIT

For the year ended December 312010 all distributions received by the shareholders were classified as return of capital for tax purposes due to the net loss recorded by us

We have concluded that there are no significant uncertain tax positions requiring recognition in our financial statements Neither we nor our subsidiaries have been asseased interest or penalties

by any major tax jurisdictions Our evaluations were performed for the tax years ending December 312010 and 2009 As of December 312010 returns for the calendar years 2000 through 2009 mrnaln

subject to examination by major tax jurisdictions

Net Loss Per Common Share

Basic net loss per common share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common shareholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding for the period Diluted

net loss
per common share is computed by dividing net loss attributable to common shareholders by the sum of the weighted average

number of common shares outstanding and any potential dilutive

shares for the period Under the two-class method of computing earnings per share net loss attributable to common shareholders is computed by adjusting net loss for the non forfeitable dividends paid

on eon-vested restricted stock

The following table reconciles the components of basic and diluted net loss
pee common share

For the Year Ended

December 312010 December 312009

Netloss $231l6g70 $436921

Dividends on restricted stock expected to vest 11300

Basic net loss sttributabWio common shareholders $2318170 43S92I

Weighted average
number of common shares outstanding 333301 25405

Potential dilutive shares

Weighted average number of common shares outstanding and potential dilutive shares 333701 25405

Excludes 16142 and 9436 shares related to non-vested restricted stork for the yesm ended December 312010 and 2009 mspectively Also excludes any dilution related to the 1000 shares of

convertible stock as the conversion would be anti-dilutive and currently there would be no conversion into common shares

Reportable Segment

Our current business consists of investing sn and operating multifamily comrnumties Substantially all of our consolidated net toss is from investments in real estate properties that we own

through Co Investment Ventures which we account for under the equity method of accounting We internally evaluate operating performance on an individual property level and view our real estate

assets as one industry segment and accordingly our properties will be aggregated into one reportable segment

Fair Value Measuremenls

Fair value is defined as the price that would be received upon the sale of an asset or paid to transfer liability in an orderiy transaction between market participants at the measurement date The GAAP

fair value framework uses three-tiered approach Fair value measurements are classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories

Level unadjusted quoted prices in active markets that are accessible at the measurement date for identical assets or liabilities

Level quoted prices for similar instruments in active markets quoted prices for identical or similar instmments in markets that are not active sod model-derived valuations in which

significant inputs and significant value drivers are observable inactive markets and

Level prices or valuation techniques where little or no market data is available that requires inputs that are significant to the fair value measurement and unobservable
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES Continued

Share Repurchase Plan and Redeemable Common Stock

The Company has adopted share repurchase plan that may enable stockholders to sell their shares to the Company in limited circumstances

There are several limitations on the Companys ability to repurchase shares under the share repurchase plan

We may not repurchase shsres until the stockholder has held the shares for one year

During any
calendar year the share repurchase plan limits the number of shares we may repurchase to those that we could purchase with the net proceeds from the sale of shares

under the distribution reinvestment plan during the previous fiscal year

During any calcndar year we may not repurchase
in excess of 5% of the number of shares of common stock outstanding as of the same date in the prior calendar year

Pursuant to the plan we will initially repurchase shares at prices determined as follows

The lower of $9.25 or the price paid to acquire the shares from us for stockholders who have held their shares for at least one year

The lower of $9.50 or the price paid to acquire the shares from us for stockholders who have held their shares for at least two years

The lower of $9.75 or the price paid to acquire the shares from us for stockholders who have held their shares for at least three years and

The lower of $10.00 or the price paid to acquire the shares from us for stockholdem who have held their shares for at least four years

Our Board of Directors may amend or modify any provision of the plan at any time in its discretion without prior notice to participants In the event that our Board of Directors amends

suspends or terminates the share repurchase plan however the Company will send stockholders notice of the changes following the date of such amendment suspension or modification and will

disclose the changes in report filed with the SEC on either Form Form l0.Q or Form 10 as appropriate

We record amounts that are redeemable under the share
repurchase plan as redeemable common stock in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets because the shares are redeemable at the

option of the holder and therefore their redemption is outside our control The maximum amount redeemable under our share repurchase plan is limited to the number of shares we could repurchase with

the amount of the net proceeds from the sale of shsres under the distribution reinvestment plan during the prior fiscal year However because the amounts that can be repurchased in future periods are

determinable and
only contingent on an event that is likely to occur e.g the

passage
of time we present

the net proceeds from the current dividend reinvestment plan net of current year redemptions

as redeemable common stock in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets

We classify financial instruments that represent mandatory obligation to us to repurchsse shares as liabilities When we determine we have mandatory obligation to repurchase
shares under

the share repurchase plan we will reclassify such obligstions from temporary equity to liability based upon their respective settlement values

We limit the dollar value of shares that maybe repurchased under the program as described above During the year ended December 312010 we did not repurchase any shares pursuant to our

share
reparuhase plan berasse of the restrktion that during each ralendar

year redemptions are limited to the amount of net proLeeds
from the sale 0f shares under oui distribution reinvestment pian

during the prior calendar year and the restriction that shareholders hold their shares for one year June 12010 was the first month that shares were issued under the distribution reinvestment plan
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

RECENT ACCOUNTING PRONOUNCEMENTS

In January 2010 the FASB issued Accounting Standards tJpdste ASU No 2010-Ot Equity Topic 505 Accounting for Distributions to Shoreholders with Components of Stock and Cosh

ASU No 2010-Ct This ASU clarifies that when the stock portion of distribution allows stockhotders to etect to receive cash or stock with potential limitation on the total amount of cash that all

stockholders can elect to receive in the aggregate the distrihntioo would be considered share issuance as opposed to stock dividend and the share issuance would be reflected in earnings per share

prospectively ASU No 2010-01 was effective for interim and annual periods ending on or after December 15 2009 and was required to be applied on retroapective basis The adoption of ASU No 2010-

01 did not have an impact on our consolidated financial statements

In January 20 tO the VASE issued ASU No 2010-06 Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures Topic 820 Improving Disclosures about Fair Value Measurement ASU No 20t0-06

ASU No 2010.06 requires additional disclosures regarding significant transfers in and out of Levels and fair value measurements including description of the reasons for the transfers Further this

ASU requires additional disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements relating to the activity in Level fair value measurements ASU No 2010 06 was effective for interim and annual

reporting periods beginning after December 15 2009 except
for the disclosures about purchases sales issuances and settlements relating to the activity in Level fair value messurements Those

disclosures are effective for fiscal years beginning after December 152010 and for interim periods within those fiscal yesm The adoption of ASU No 2010-06 did not have material impsct on oar

consolidated financial statements

ACQUISITIONS

During the year ended December 312010 we acquired an equity interest in the following properties

Total

Prnperty Name Acquisition Lend and Land In Place Lease Building and Furnitures and Purchase

Location of Property Date Improvements Intangible Asset Improvemeuls Fixtures Price

theReserve at Creektide

Chattanooga TN 03/31/2010 $1663000 $370000 $Ii 786fl00 $431000 $14iSb 4100

The Apartments at Meadowmont

Chapel Hill NC 0410912010 4907000 712000 30644000 627000 36960000

TheEttstesptPerimfter4ssgustaGA 09/01/2010 2038000 543000 21760000 609000 2495Q000

Gardens atllillsboro VillageNashvilleTN 09/30/2010 10317000 631000 20967000 472000 32394000

Total purchase price excludes acquisition fees and closing coals which were expensed

The Reserve at Creekside

We invested $542000 to acquire
33.33% equity interest in ER Creekuide Managing Member LLC the Creekside Managing Member JV Entity through wholly-owned subsidiary of our

operating partnership BEMT Creekside LLC BEMT Creekside Bluerock Special Opportunity Income Fund LLC BEMT Co-Investor and Bluerock Special Opportunity Income Fund II LLC

BEMT Co-Investor It esch invested $542000 to acquire the remaining 66.66% interest in the Creekside Managing Member JV Entity BEMT Creekside BEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co-Investor II

are co managers of the Creekside Managing Member JV Entity Under the terms of the operating agreement for the Creekside Managing Member JV Entity certain major decisions regarding the

investments of the Creekside Managing Member IV Entity require the unanimous approval of the Company through BEMT Creekside UEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co-Investor 11 if the Company

BEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co-Investor are not able to agree on major decision or at any time after March 312013 sny party may initiates buy-sell proceeding Additionally any time after March

312013 any party may initiates proceeding to force the sale of the Creekside Managing Member JV Entitys interest in the Creekside JV Entity defined below to third party or in the instance of the

non initiating parties rejection of sale cause the non-initiating parties to purchase the initiating partys interest in the Creekside Managing Member/V Entity

The Creekside Managing Member IV Entity contributed $t 463 million of equity capital to acquires 61% equity interest in ER Hawthorne Creekside IV LLC the Creekside IV Entity and acts

as the manager of the Creekside IV Entity Hawthorne

F-14



BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009
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Creekside LLC Hawthorne an unaffihiated entity invested $698022 to acquire the remaining 32% interest in the Creekside JV Entity The Creekside IV Entity is the sole owner of BR Creckside LLC
special purpose cntity that holds title to the Creekside Property BR Creekside Under the tenns of the operating agreement of the Creekside IV Entity major decisions with respect to the joint venture

or the Creekside Property are made by the majority vote of an appointed management committee which is controlled hy the Creekside Managing Member JV Entity However any decision with respect to

the sale or refmancing of the Creekside Property requires the unanimons approval of the Creekside Managing Member IV Entity and Hawthorne Further to the extent that the Creekside Managing

Member JV Entity and Hawthorne are not able to agree on major decision or at
any time after March 31 2013 either

party may initiate buy-sell proceeding Additionally any
time after March 312013

either
party may initiate proceeding to force the sale of the Creekside Property to third party or in the instance of the non-initiating partys rejection of sate cause the non-initiating party to

purchase the initiating partys interest in the Creekside IV Entity to October 2010 the Creekside Managing Member JV entity contribnted $40757 of equity capital to refinance the loan at the

property As result of this contribution the structure described above changed so that we BEMT Co-investor and BEMT Co-Investor II each hold 2331% of indirect equity interest in the Creekside

property 69.93% in the aggregate and Hawthorne now holds the remaining 30.07% indirect equity interest

We BEMT Co-Investor BEMT Co-Investor It and Hawthorne will each receive current distributions from the operating cash flow generated by the Creekside Property in proportion to these

respective percentage equity interests

Meadowmont

We invested $132 million to acquire 32.5% equity interest in BR Meadowmont Managing Member LLC the Meadowmont Managing Member JV Entity through wholly-owned

subsidiasy of our operating partnership BEMT Meadowmont LLC BEMT Meadowmont BEMT Co-Investor invested $1.17 million to acquire 25% interest and BEMT Co-Investor It invmted $1.98

million to acquire the remaining 423% interest in the Meadowmont Managing Member TV Entity BEMT Meadowmont BEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co Investor II are co-managers of the Meadowmont

Managing Member JV Entity Under the terms of the operating agreement for the Meadowmont Managing Member IV Entity certain major decisions regarding the investments of the Meadowmont

Managing Member IV Entity require
the unanimous approval

of the Company through BEMT Meadowmont BEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co Investor If the Company BEMT Co-Investor and

BEMT Co-Investor are not able to
agree

on major decision or at any time after April 2013 any party may initiate buy sell proceeding Additionally any
time after April 2013 any party may

initiate proceeding to force the sale of the Meadowmont Managing Member IV Entitys interest in the Meadowmont IV Entity defined below to third party or in the instance of the non initiating

parties rejection of sale cause the non initiating parties to purchase the initiating partys interest in the Meadowmont Managing Member IV Entity

The Meadowmont Managing Member IV Entity contributed $4.65 million of equity capital to acqnire 50% eqnity interest in Bell BR Meadowmont IV LLC the Meadowmont IV Entity

Bell Partners Inc affiliate that is unaffillated with the Company Fund Ill Meadowmont Apartments LLC Bell invested $4.65 million to acquire the remaining 50% interest in the Meadowmont IV

Entity The Meadowmont Managing Member IV Entity and Bell are co-managers of the Meadowmont IV Entity The Meadowmont JV Entity is the sole owner of Bell BR Meadowmont LLC special-

purpose entity that holds title to the Meadowmont Property BR Meadowmont Under the terms of the operating agreement of the Meadowmont IV Entity decisions with
respect to the joint venture or

the Meadowmont Property are made by unanimous approval of the managers Further to the extent that the Meadowmont Managing Member IV Entity and Bell are not able to agree on certain major

decisions either party may initiate buy-sell proceeding Additionally any
time after April 92013 either party may initiate proceeding to force the sale of the Meadowmont Property to ttsird party or

in the instance of the non initiating partys rejection of sale cause the non-initiating party to purchase the initiating partys interest in the Meadowmont IV Entity

As result of the structure described above the Company hotds 16.25% indirect equity interest BEMT Co Investor holds 12.5% indirect equity interest and BEMT Co Investor II holds

21.25% indirect
eqaity interest in the Meadowmont Property 50% in the aggregate and Bell holds the remaining

50% indirect equity interest The Company BEMT Co-Investor BEMT Co-Investor II

and Bell will each receive current distributions from the operating cash flow generated by the Meadowmont Property in proportion to these respective percentage equity interests
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

ACQUISITIONS Continued

Augusta

We invested $1.9 million to acquire 50% equity interest in BR Augusta JV Member LLC the Auguata Member JV Entity through wholly-owned subsidiary of its operating partnership

BEMT Augusta LLC BEMT Augusta BEMT Co Investor invested $1.9 million to acquire the remaining 50% interest in the Augusta Member IV Entity BEMT Augusta and BEMT Co-Investor are

co-managers of the Augusta Member IV Entity Under the terms of the
operating agreement for the Augusta Member IV Entity certain major decisions regarding the investments of the Augusta Member

IV Entity require the approval of the Company through BEMT Augusta and BEMT Co Investor To the extent that the Company and BEMT Co Investor are not able to agree on major decision or at

any time after September 2013 either party may initiate buy sell
proceeding Additionally any time after September 2013 either party may initiate proceeding to force the sale of the Augusta

Member IV Entitys interest in the Augusta IV Entity deftned below to third
party or in the instance of the non-initiating parties rejection of sale cause the non-initiating parties to purchase the

initiating partys interest in the Augusta Member IV Entity

The Augusta
Member IV Entity contributed $3.85 million of

equity capital to acquire 50% equity interest in BSFIBR Augusta JV LLC the Augusta IV Entity and acts as the manager of

the Augusta iv Entity Trade Street an unaffttiated entity invested $3.85 million to acquire the remaining 50% interest in the Augusta IV Entity The Augusta IV Entity is the sole owner of BSFIBR

Augusta LLC special purpose entity that holds title to the Augusta Property BR Augusta Under the terms of the operating agreement of the Augusta IV Entity majnr decisions with tespeet to the

joint ventare or the Augusta Property are made by the majority vote of an appointed management committee which is controlled by the Augusta Member JV Entity However any
decision with respect to

the sale or refinancing of the Augusta Property requires the unanimous approval of the Augusta Member JV Entity and Trade Street Farther to the extent that the Augusta Member IV Entity and Trade

Street are not able to agree on major decision or at
any

time after September 20t3either pany may initiate buy-sell proceeding Additionally any thne after September 2013either party may initiate

proceeding to force the sale of the Augusta Property to third party or in the instance of the non initiating partys rejection of sale cause the non initiating party to purchase the initiating partys

interest in the Augusta IV Entity

As result of the structure described above the Company and BEMT Co-Investor each hotd a25% indirect equity interest in the Augusta Property 50% in the aggregate and Trade Street

holds the remaining 50% indirect equity interest The Company BEMT Co-Investor and Trade Street will each reeeive current distributtoos from the operating cash flow generated by the Augusta

Property
in proportion to these

respective percentage equity interests

Hlllsboro

We invested $13 million to acquire 25% equity interest in BR Hittsbero Village IV Member LLC the tlillsboro Member IV Entity through wholly-owned subsidiary of its operating

partnership BEMT Hillabero Village LLC BEMT Hillsboro BEMT Co-Investor invested $1.9 million to acquire
37.5% interest and BEMT Co-investor Einvested $1.9 million to acquire the remaining

37.5% interest in the Hillsboro Member IV Entity BEMT Hillsboro BEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co-Investor II are co managers of the Hillsboro Member IV Entity Under the terms of the operating

agreement
for the HEtaboro Member IV Entity certain major decisions regarding the investments of the Hillsboro Member IV Entity require the unanimous approval of the Company through BEMT

Hillsbero BEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co-Investor II If the Company BEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co Investor II are not able to agree on major decision or at any time after September 30 2013

any party may initiate buy-sell proceeding Additionally any time after September 30 2013 any party may initiate proceeding to force the sale of the Hillsboro Member IV Entitys interest in the

Hillsboro JV Entity defined below to third party or in the instance of the non initiating parties rejection of sale cause the non-initiating parties to purchase the initiating partys interest in the

Hillabero Managing Member IV Entity

The Hillaboro Member IV Entity contributed its capital portion of which was funded by $2 million loan the Bell Loan from Bell the IV partner to acquire 50% equity interest in Bell BR

Hillsboro Village IV LLC the Hillaboro IV Entity and is empowered to become manager of the Hillsboro IV Entity Bell invested $5.01 million to acquire the remaining 50% interest in the Hillaboro IV

Entity The Hillsboro IV Entity is special purpose entity
that holds title to the Hilisboro Property Under the tarms of the operating agreement of the Hitlaboro IV Entity upon repayment of the Bell

Loan major decisions with respect to the joint venture or the Hillaboro Property are made by the majority vote of an appointed management committee which is controlled by the Hillaboro Member IV

Entity provided however soy decision with respect to the sale ee refinancing of the Hillsboro Property requires the unanimous approval of the Hillsboco Member IV Entity and Bell Subject to repayment

of the Bell Loan to the extent that the Hillsboro Member JV Entity and Bell are not able to agree on major decision or at any time after September 30 2013 either party may initiate buy sell

proceeding Additionally any time after September 30 2013 either party may initiate proceeding to force the sale of the Hillsboro
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

ACQUISITIONS Continued

Pcoperty to third party or in the instance of the oon initiating partys rejection
of sale cause the non-initiating party to purchase the initiating partys interest in the Hiisboco JV Entity partial

cepayment of $750000 was made on the Bell Loan on November 232010 Effective December 31 2010 the balance of the Bell Loan was extinguished and Bell now holds 6243% intecest in the HiUsboro

JV Entity and the Hillsboco Member JV
Entity

holds the remaining 3757%

As cesuls of the strncmre described above we hold 125% indirect equity interest BEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co Investor II each hold 12.53% indirect equity interest in the Hifisboro

Property 37.57% in the aggregate and Bell holds the remaining 62.43% indirect equity interest We BEMT Co-Investor BEMT Co-Investor II and Bell wUl each receive cucrent distributions from the

opecating
cash flow

generated by the Hillsboro Property in proportion to these respective percentage equity interests

EQUITY METHOD INVESTMEN1S

We accounted for the acquisitions of our interests in
properties through managing member LLCs in accordance with the provisions of the Consolidation Topic of the FASB ASC Following is

summary of our ownership interest by pcoperty
as of December 312010

Property Managing Memher LLC interest Joint Venture interest Indirect Equity Interest in Property

Springlsouse 50.00% 75% 37.50%

Creekside 33.33% 69.93% 2331%

Meadowmont 3250% 50% 1625%

Augusta 50.00% 50% 25.00%

Hillsboro 3327% 3757% 12S0%

We
analyzed our interest sn the managmg member LLU to deternune if the LLC is VIE and if so if we are the pnmacy benetscsary

For Springhouse Augusta and Hillsboro our contribution into the managing member LLC was funded through loan from an affiliate who is anothec investor in the managing member LLC
thus oar equity investment is not at risk Since unanimous approval

is required by all members to direct the activities that most significantly impact
the managing member LLCs economic performance the

holder of the equity investment at risk lacks that power and thus we concluded that the managing member LLC entities are VIEs We are not the primary beneficiary because we do not have tbe power to

direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of the managing member LLC and would not be considered to be the investor that is most closely asseciated with the entity

among the related party investors As resnlt ouc investments are reflected as investments in unconsolidated joint ventures under the equity method of accounting

For Cceekside our initial contribution into the managing membec LLC was funded through loan from an affiliate and accounted for as discussed above however on September 212010 the

loan was repaid and the managing member LLC was no longer considered VIE We then analyzed the managing membec LLC under voting intecest model and determined that the investment in the

unconsolidated joint venture should be accounted for under the eqnity method as each membec had an equal voting interest

Foc Meadowmont oar initial contribution into the managing member LLC on April 20t0 was funded through sloan from an affsliate who is another investor in the managing membec LLC but

this was subsequently repaid on June 82010 However the voting rights of the investocs are not proportional to their obligations to absorb the expected losses or their rights to receive the expected

cesidual returns of the managing member and substantially
all of the activities are done on behalf of the single related party group all of the investors are part of single related party group thus this

would cause the managing member LLC to be VIE We are not the primary beneficiary because we do not have the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance

of the managing member LLC and would not be consideced to be the investor that is most closely associated with the entity among the related party investors As result our investment is reflected as an

investment in an unconsolidated joint ventures under the equity method of accounting
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BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINM4CIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

The carrying amount of our investments in unconsolidated jnint ventures was $63 million and $2.4 million as of December 312010 and December 312009 respectively Summary financial

information for the operating properties as of December 312010 and fnr the
years

ended December 312010 and 2009 is as follows

Balance Sheet Data

Rest Estate net depreciation

Other assets

Total assets

Mortgage payable

Other current liabilities

Total liabilities

Stookho1ers equity

Total liabilities and stockholders
equity

AsofDecember3l2010

3133126052

4622311

3774L363

$l060k6772

1789209

101105181

\29.942382

$137748363

For the Year Ended December31

Operating Data

Reotl revenues

2010 2009

$9910400 $309J00

Operating expenses 4042700 100800

Mpesgage Interest

Income after debt service

Attqslisition fees

3581100 10700

2286600

1939300

101500

361100

Depreciation and amortization

Net loss

5139300 211000

4392200 471300
Net loss attributable to iv partners 3680579 294348

$i1l1721 3176152

Amortization of deferred financing costs paid on behalf of joint ventures

Equity invset loss of unenqsnlidated joint
venfurà

35503

$114722

365

3177117

As discussed above the investments in Springhouse Meadowmont Augusta and Hillsboro are considered VIEs and we are not the primary beneficiary These investments are accounted for

as equity method investments and see included in the
caption Investments in anconsolidnted rent esrnte joint ventures on the consolidated balance sheet The risks and rewards associated with our

interest in these entities are based primarily on our ownemhip percentage Our maximum exposure to loss is equal to our investment balance which is approximately $5.9 million as of December 312010
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BLUEROCE ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

NOTE PAYABLE

In connection with our investment io the Spsinghouse joint venture on Decemher 2009 BEMT Springhoose LLC whotty-owoed subsidiary of our operatiog partnership BEMT
Springhouse entered ioto loan agreement with Elnerock Special Opportunity Income Fund EEMT Co-Investor pursuant to which EEMT Springhonse borrowed $2.8 million the BEMT Co

Investor Springhouse Loan The EEMT Co-Investor Springhouse Loan initially
bad six-month term maturing June 2010 which was subsequenlly extended to December 2010 and

again to June

2011 partial repayment
in the amount of $1.1 million was made on June 23 2010 It bears interest compounding monthly at rate of 30-day LtBOR 5.00% subject to minimum rate of 7.00%

annualized For the years ended December 312010 and 2009 the interest rate on the EEMT Co-Investor Springhouse Loan was 7.00% Interest on the loan is paid on current basis from cash flow

distributed to us from BR Spriughouse Managing Member LLC the Springhouse Managing Member JV Entity The BEMT Co Investor Springhouse Loan is secured by pledge of our indirect

membership interest in the Springhouse property and pledge of BEMT Springhouses membership interest in the Springhouse Managing Member JV Entity

In connection with our investment in the Creekside joint venture on March 31 2010 BEMT Creckside entered into loan agreement
with EEMT Co Investor II

pursuant to which it was

authorized to borrow up to $1.1 million the EEMT Co Investor II Creckside Loan with respect to which BEMT Co Investor It had advanced $542000 in connection with closing The EEMT Co

Investor II Creekside Loan had six month term maturing December 312010 and could be prepald without penalty It bore interest compounding monthly at rate of 30-day LIBOR 5.00% subject to

minimum rate of 7.00% annualized The BEMT Co-Investor II Creekside Loan was secured by pledge of our indirect membership interest in the Creckside property and pledge of BEMT Creeksides

membership interest in the Creekside Managing Member IV Entity The loan plus accrued interest was paid in full on September 282010

In connection with our investment in the Meadowmont joint venture on April 2010 BEMT Meadowmont LLC entered into loan
agreement

with BEMT Co-Investor II pursuant to which it

was authorized to borrow
up

to $2.6 million the BEMT Co Investor It Meadowmont Loan with respect to which BEMT Co Investor II advanced $1.4 million with respect to the acquisition The BEMT

Co-Investor II Meadowmont Loan had six month term maturing October 2010 and could be prepaid without penalty It bore interest compounding monthly at rate of 30-day LIEOR 5.00% subject

to minisnum rate of 7fl0% annualized The BEMT Co-Investor II Meadowmont Loan was secured by pledge of our indirect membership interest in the Meadowmont property and pledge of BEMT
Meadowmonts membership interest in the Meadowmont Managing Member TV Entity The loan plus aecmed interest was paid in fuli on June 82010

In connection with our investment in the Augusta joint venture on September 2010 BEMT Augusta entered into loan agreement with BEMT Co-Investor
pursuant In which it borrowed

$1.9 million the BEMT Co Investor Augusta Luau in connection with the Augusta Property closing The BEMT Co-Investor Augusta Loan initially had six month term maturing February 282011
which was subsequently extended to August 31 2011 The loan may be prepaid without penalty It bears interest compounding monlhiy at rate of 30-day LIBOR 5.00% subject to minimum rate of

7.00% annualized Interest on the loan is paid on current basis from cash flow distributed to us from the Augusta Managing Member JV Entity The BEMT Co Investor Augusta Loan is secured by

pledge of our indirect membership interest in the Augusta property and pledge of EEMT Augustas membership interest in the Augusta Managing Member IV Entity

In connection with our investment in the Hiilsboro joint venture on September 30 2010 BEMT Hillsbom entered into loan agrecment with BEMT Co Investor It pursuant to which it

borrowed $1.3 million the BEMT Co Investor II Hillsboro Loan The BEMT Co Investor II Hillsboro Loan initially had six month term maturing March 31 2011 which was subsequentiy extended to

September 30 2011 It bears interest compounding monthly at rate of 30-day LIBOR 5.00% subject to minimum rate of 7.00% annualized Interest on the loan is
paid on current basis from cash

flow distributed to us from the Hillabero Managing Member IV Entity The BEMT Co-Investor It Hillsboro Loan is secured by pledge of our indirect membership interest in the Hillsboro property and

pledge of BEMT Flillsboros membership interest in the Hillsbrsro Managing Member IV Entity

We
expect to repay

the Springhouse Augusta and Hillsboro notes upon mahirity
with the

proceeds to be raised from the Initial Public Offering If we are unable to repay
the principal amounts

upon maturity we will seek to extend the loans or refinance If we cannot repay or refinance the notes then we will lose our interest in the associated joint venture

Durissg the years ended December 312010 and 2009 we incurred
sppn.ssisuately 259000 and $15000 respectively uf interest ea.paasc
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BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009

FAIR VALUE DISCLOSURE

As of December 31 2010 we believe the carrying values of essb and cash equivalents and receivables and payables from/to affiliates approximate their fair values based on their highly-liquid

nature and/or sbort lerm maturities including prepayment options As of December 31 2010 and 2009 we bad no significant assets or liabilities measured at fair value on recurring ot nonrecurring

basis We estimate fair values for financial instruments based on interest rates with similar terms and remaining maturities that management believes we could obtain

RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS

In connection with our investments we entered into loan agreements with EEMT Co-Investor and BEMT Co Investor El the terms of which are described above in Noted Notes Payable

As of December 31 2010 and 2009 approximately $2.8 million and $2.4 million respectively of organizational and offering coals have been incurred on our behalf of which $501000 has been

reimbursed to the advisor in 2010 We are liable to reimburse these costs only to the extent selling commissions the dealer manager fee and other organization and offering coats do not exceed 15% of the

gross proceeds of the offering When recorded by us organizational costs are expensed and third-party offering costs are charged to shareholders equity Organizational and offering costs will be

reimbursed from the
gross proceeds of the offering As of December 312010 approximately $58000 of organizational costs have been

expensed
and are inclnded in general and administrative expense

and approximately $1.3 million of offering costs bave been charged to shareholders equity

The advisor performs
its duties and responsibilities as our fiduciary under an advisory agreement The advisory agreement has one-year term expiring October 142011 and may be renewed for

an unlimited number of successive one-year periods upon the mutual consent of oor advisor and us The advisor conducts our operations and msnsget our portfolio of resl estate and real estate related

investments under the terms of the advisory agreement Certain of our affiliates will receive fees and compensation in connection with the Initial Public Offering and the acquisition management and sale

of our real estate investments

We pay our advisor monthly asset management fee for the services it provides pursuant to the advisory agreement The asset management fee equals one-twelfth of 1.0% of the higher of the

cost or the value of each asset where cost equals the amount actually paid excluding acquisition fees and expenses to purchase each asset it acquires including any debt attributable to the asset

including any debt encumbering the asset sfier acquisition provided that with respect to any properties we develop construct or improve cost will include the amount expended by us for the

development construction or improvement and the value of an asset is the value established by the most recent independent valuation report if available without rednction for depreciation bad

debts or other non-cash reserves Por these purposes invested capital means the original issue price pald for the shares of our common stock reduced by prior distributions identified as special

distributions from the sale of our asset The asset management fee will be based only on the portion of the cost or value attributable to our investment in an asset if we do not own all of an asset

The advisor receives 1.75% of the purchase price of
property or investment for its services in connection with the investigation selection sourcing due diligence and acquisition of that

property or investment The purchase price of properiy or investment will equal the amount paid or allocated to the purchase development construction or improvement of property inclusive of

expenses related thereto and the amount of debt associated with such real
property or investment The purchase price allocable for joint venture investments will equal the preduct of the purchase

price of the nnderiying property and our ownership percentage in the joint venture We will pay the advisor an origination fee in lieu of an acquisition fee for services in connection with the

investigation selection sourcing due diligence and acquisition of mortgage subordinated bridge or other loans of 1.75% of the principal amount of the borrowers loan obligation or of the purchase

price of
any loan we purchase tnclnding third party expenses

The advisor alto receives fmancing fee equal to 1% of the amount under
any

loan or line of credit made available to us The advisor may re-allow some or all of this fee to reimburse third

parties with whom it may subcontract to procure such financing for us In addition to the extent the advisor provides substantial amount of services in connection with the disposition of one or more of

our properties or invesnnents except for securities that are traded on national securities exchange the advisor wilt receive fees equal to the lesser of 1.5% of the sales price of each property or other

investment sold or 50% of the selling commission that would have been paid to third-party broker in connection with such disposition In no event may disposition fees paid to the advisor or its
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS Continued

affiliates and unaffihiated third parties exceed in the aggregate 6% of the contract sales price In addition to the fees payable to the advisor we reimburse the advisor for all reasonable and incurred

expenses in connection with services provided to us subject to tbe limitation that we will not reimburse any amount that would cause our total
operating expenses

at tbe end of four
preceding fiscal

quarters to exceed the greater of 2% of our average invested assets or 25% of our net income determined withont reductions for any additions to reserves for depreciation bad debts or other similar

non-cash reserves and excluding any gain from the sale of our assets for the period unless majority of our independent directors has determined such expenses were justified based on unusual and

non recurrrng factors If such excess expenses are not approved by majonty of our independent directors our advssor must remsburse us at the end of the tour fiscal quarters the amount by which the

aggregate expenses during the period paid or incurred by us exceed the limitations provided above We will not reimburse the advisor for personnel costs in connection with services for which the

advisor receives acquisition origination or disposition fees As of December 31 2010 approximately $677000 of operating expenses
have been incurred on our behalf Due to the limithtioos discussed

above and because operating expenses
incurred directly by us have exceeded the 2% threshold the amount due to the advisor has not been recorded on our income statement Further approximately

$974000 has been recorded as receivable from the advisor for the excess operating expenses incurred direedy by us On March 22 2011 our Board of Directors including all of our independent

directors reviewed our total operating expenses
for the four fiscal quarters ended December 312009 and the four fiscal quarters ended each quarter thereafter and the four fiscal quarters to end March

31 2011 and unanimously determined the excess to be justified because of the costs of operating public company and our early stages of operating Upon this approval these costs totaling

approximately $1.7 million were expensed and $677000 became liability to us Our advisor has agreed to defer repayment of these costs until later date

We have issued 1000 shares of convertible stock par value $0.01 per share to our advisor The convertible stock will convert to shares of common stock if and when we have made total

distributions on the then outstanding shares of our common stock equal to the original issue price of those shares plus an 8% cumulative non-compounded annual return on the original issue price of

those shares or subject to specified conditions we list our common stock for trading on national securities exchange listing will be deemed to have occurred on the effective date of any merger

of the Company in which the consideration received by the holders of our common stork is the securities of another issuer that are listed on national securities exchange Upon conversion each share

of convertible stock will convert into number of shares of common stock equal to 1/1000 of the quotient of 15% of the excess of our enterprise value as defined in our charter plus the

aggregate value of distributions paid to date on the outstanding shares of our common stock over the aggregate purchase price paid by the stockholders for those shares plus an 8% cumulative non-

compounded annual return on the original issue price of those shares divided by our enterprise value divided by the number of outstanding shares of common stock in each case calculated as of the

date of the conversion In the event an event triggering the conversion occurs after the advisory agreement with the advisor is not renewed or terminates other than because of material breach by the

advisor the number of shares of common stock the advisor will receive upon conversion will be
prorated to account for the period of time the advisory agreement was in force

We may pay
Bluerock REIT Pmperty Management LLC wholly-owned subsidiary of the advisor property management fee up to 4% of the monthly gross income from any properties it

manages In general we contract property management services for properties direcily to non-affiliated third parties in which event we will pay the advisor an oversight fee equal to 1% of monthly gross

revenues of such
properties

All of our executive officers and some of our directors are also executive officers managers and/or holders of direct or indirect controlling interest in the advisor and other Blueroek affiliated

entities As result they owe fiduciary
duties to each of these entities their members and limited partners and investors which fiduciary duties may from time to time conflict with the fiduciary duties that

they owe to us and our stockholders

Some of the material conflicts that the advisor or its affiliates face are the determination of whether an investment opportunity should be recommended to us or another Blueroek sponsored

program or Bluerock-advised investor the allocation of the time of key executive officers directors and other real estate professionals among the Company other Bluerock sponsored programs and

Bluerock advised investors and the activities in which they are involved the fees received by the advisor and its affiliates in connection with transactions involving the purchase origination

management and sale of investments regardless of the quality of the asset acquired or the service provided us and the fees received by the advisor and its affiliates in connection with our public

offering of equity securities
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RELATED-PARTY TRANSACTIONS Continued

Summarized below are the related-party costs incurred by us for the year ended December 312010 and 2009 and any related payable and receivable amounts as of December 312010

Incurred For the Year ended Payable Receivable

December31 2010 December 3t 2009 As of December 312010

Asset $assagexnent Fees $223436 $9140 $232576

Acquisitions
Costs and Oversight Fees 362266 191953 81776

FsnancingFeez 75064 43875 14491

Reimbursable Operating Expenses 973607 973607

Reimbursable Offetissg Costs 507656

Reimbumable Organizational Costs 49931 49931

Other 92515 70585

Total $2284975 $244968 $449359 $973607

in addition to the amounts incurred by the Company as shown above our advisor has incurred the following on our behalf

$2.3 million of offering costs which will become payable as additional offering proceeds ate taised to the extent that selling commissions dealer manager fees and other organization and offering costs do

not exceed 15% of
gross offering proceeds

$677000 of operating expenses which became payable to our advisor on March 222011 upon approval by our Board of Directors

STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY

Common Stock

We are offering and selling to the public up to 100000000 shares of our 5.01
par value common stock for $10.00 per share with discounts available for certain categories of purchasers We are

also offering up to 30000000 shares of our $01 par value common stock to be issued pursuant to our distribution reinvestment plan at $9.50
per

share

Convertible Stock

We have issued so our advisor 1000 shares of our convertible stock for an aggregale purchase price of $1000 Upon certain conditions the convertible stock will convert to shares of common

stock with value equal to 15% of the excess of our enterprise value as defined in our charter plus the aggregate value of distributions paid to stockholders over ii the aggregate purchase price paid

by stockholders for our shares plus 8% cumulative non-compounded annual return on the original issue price paid for those outstanding shares

Equity Compensution Pine

We have adopted the Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trssst Inc Long Term Incentive Plan which we refer to as the Incentive Plan in order to enable us to provide an incentive to our

employees officers directors and consultants and employees and officers of our advisor to increase the value of our common stock give such
persons

stake in our future that corresponds to the

stake of each of our stockholders and obtain or retain the services of these persons who are considered essential to our long-term success by offering such persons an opportunity to participate in

our growth through ownership of out common stock or through other equity related awards We intend to issue awards only to our independent directors under our Incentive Plan which awards will be

granted under the independent directors compensation plan We have reserved and authorized an aggregate number of 2000000 shares of our common stock for issuance under the Incentive Plan

Stock-bnaed CompensntionforlndependeniDirectora

Our independent directors received an automatic grant of 5000 shares of restricted stock on the effective date of the Initial Public Offering and will receive an automaric grant of 2500 shares of

restricted stock at each annual meeting of our stockholders thereafter Each
person

who thereafter is elected or appointed as an independent director will receive an automatic grant of 5000 shares of

restricted stock on the date such person is first elected as an independent director and an automatic grant of 2500 shares of restricted stock at each annual meeting of our stockholders thereafter To the

extent allowed by applicable law the independent directors will not be

22



STOCKHOLDERS EQUITY- Continued

required to pay any purchase price for these grants of restheted stock The restricted stock witt vest 20% at the time of the grant and 20% on each anniversary thereafter over four years from the

date of the grant All restricted stock may receive distributions whether vested or unvested The vatue of the restricted stock to be granted is not determinable until the date of grant

summary of the status of our non vested shares as of December 3t 2010 and 2009 and changes during the years ended December 312010 and 2009 is presented hetow

Non Vested shares Shares Weighted average grant-date fair value

Dalsnceatlanuary t2009 5-

Granted 15000 150000

Vested 3625 3250
Forfeited

Biteeatpeeember372009 11375 $L43ç/50

Granted 7500 75000

Vested 5688 56875
Forfeited

DalsoceatDeeember3l2010 13.188 $131875

At December31 20t0 and 2009 there were $t3t.S75 and 51t3750 respectively of total unrecognized compensation cost related to unvested stock options granted under the Plan That cost is

expected to be recognized over period of four years The total fair value of shares vested during the year ended December 312010 was $56875

The Company currently uses authorized and unissued shares to satisfy share award exercises

Distributions

We paid osr first disteibutionetfeetive June 12010 Disthbutions including distributions paid by issuing shares under the DRIP for the year ended December 31 2010 were as follows

Distributions

2010 Declared Paid

Fourth Quarter $115807 $108782

Tbird Quarter 89432 77374

Second Quarter 27655 $6553

Distributions are calculated based on stockholders of record each day during the period at rate of 50.00191781 per share per day and equal daily amount that if paid each day for

365-day period would equal 7.0% annualized rate based on purchase price
of $10.00 per share

10 ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

We are dependent on the advisor for certain services that are essential to us including the identification evaluation negotiation purchase and disposition of properties
and other investments

management of the daily operations of our real estate portfolio and other general and administrative responsibilities In the event that these companies are unable to provide the respective services we

will be required to obtain such services from other sources

BLUEROCK ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AS OF DECEMBER 312010 and DECEMBER 312009
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BLUEROCI ENHANCED MULTIFAMILY TRUST INC
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AS OF DECEMBER 312010 wad DECEMBER 312009

11 LEGAL MATFERS

From time to time the Company may become party to legal proceedings that arise in the ordinary course of ita business Management it not aware of
any legal proceedings of which the outcome

is reasonably likely to have material adverse effect on its results of operations or financial condition

12 SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Status of the Offering

Oar offering was suspended from November 172010 autO March 22011 in connection with our determination to restate certain of our financial statements

Distributions Paid

Dollar amount of Shares

Month Date Paid Total Distribution Cash Distribution Issued purssant to DRIP

Decenlhtr 2010 Januarp32O11 $40216 $40286

January2011 February320l1 40216 25098 $15111

Fehrsasj 2011 March 201 g6468 23252 12716

Distributions Declared

On January 132011 our Board of Directors declared distributions based on daily record dates for the period from January 13 2011 through March 312011

On March 222011 our Board of Directors declared distributions based on daily record dates for the period from April 12011 through July 312011 Distributions payable to each stockholder of

record were or will be paid in cash on or before the 15th day of the following month

Distributions are calculated based on stockholders of record
per day during the

period at rate of $000191711 per share per day and
equal daily amount that if paid each day for 365-day

period would equal 7.0% annualized rate based on purchase price of $10.00 per share

Affiliate Note Payable

On January 20 2011 BEMT Meadowmont LLC wholly owned sabsidiary of our operating partnership BEMT Meadowmonf entered into an agreement with Bluerock Sperial Opportunity

Income Fund 11 an affiliate of our sponsor SOIF 11 for line of credit represented by promissory note the Note Under the terms of the Note BEMT Meadowmont may borrow from time to time

up to $500000 for general working capital The Note has six-month term from the date of the first advance and matures on July 202011 It beam interest compounding monthly at rare of 30-day

LIBOR 5.00% subject to minimum rate of 7.00% annualized Interest on the loan will be paid on current basis from cash flow distributed to us from BR Meadowmont JV Member LLC the

Meadowmont iv Member The Note is secured by pledge of our indirect membership interest in the Meadowmont Property and pledge of our direct membership interest in the Meadowmont JV

Member On January 232011 we borrowed $150000
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EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number

Exhibit

3.1 Articles of Ameodmeot and Restatement of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Pre Effective Ameodment No to the Registrants Registration

Statement on Form 11 No.333 153135

3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Pre Effective Amendment No to the Registrants Registration Statement on

FormS ItNo.333-t53135

4.1 Distribution Reinvestment Plan included as Exhibit to the Prospectus dated January 312011

42 Form of Subscription Agreement included as Exhibit to the Prospectus
dated January 312011

10.1 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of BR Creekside Managing Member LLC dated as of March 312010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1

to the Registrants Periodic Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended March 312010

10.2 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of BR Hawthorne Creekside JV LLC dated as of March 312010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to

the Registrants Periodic Report on Form tO-Q for the quarterly period ended March 312010

10.3 Property Management Agreement by and between BR Creekside LLC and Hawthorne Residential Partners LLC dated as of March 312010 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 103 to the Registranta Periodic Report on Form tO for the quarterly period ended March 312010

10.4 General Warranty Deed from the Reserve at Creekside Florida limited partnership to BR Creekaide LLC Delaware limited
liability company incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 10.17 to Post Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 5-11 No 333-153135

105 Secured Promissory Note by and between Bluerock Special Opportunity Income Fund II LLC as lender and BEMT Creekside LLC dated as of March31
2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit to.tg to Post-Effective Amendment No.3 to the Companya Registration Statement on FormS 11 No 333 153135

10.6 Pledge and Security Agreement by BEMT Creekside LLC for Blueroek Special Opportunity Income Fund II LLC dated March31 20t0 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.19 to Post-Effective Amendment No.3 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-it No 333 153135

10.7 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of BR Meadowmont Managing Member LLC dated as of April 92010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit

10.20 to Post Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on FormS 11 No 333-153135

10.8 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Bell BR Meadowmont JV LLC dated as of April 92010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.21 to Post-

Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-ll No 333 153135

10.9 Promissory Note by and between BEMT Meedowmont LLC and Blueroek Special Opportunity Income Fund LLC datad April 92010 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 1022 to Post-Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 11 No 333 153135

10.10 Pledge and Security Agreement by and between BEMT Mesdowmont LLC and Bluerock Special Opportunity Income Fund II LLC dated April 92010 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.23 to Post Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statament on Form 5-11 No 333 153135
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10.11 Multifamily Note CME by and between Bell BR Meadowmont LLC and CWCapital LLC dated April 92010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1024 to Poat Effective

Amendment No to the Companys Regiatration Statement on Form 11 No 333-153135

10.12 Property Management Agreement by and between Bell BR LLC and Bell Partners Inc dated aa of April 92010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1025 to Post Effective

Amendment No.3 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form ii No 333-153135

10.13 Modification of the Secured Promissory Note between BEMT Springhouse LLC aod Bluerock Special Opportussity Income Fund LLC dated as of June 2010

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to tbe Companys Periodic Report on Form 10 for the quarterly period ended June 302010

10.14 Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of BR Augusta JV Member LLC dated as of September 12010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.27 to

Post Effective Amendment No.4 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-Il No 333-153135

10.15 Lianited Liability Company Agreement of BSF/BR Augusta IV LLC dated as of July 29 2010 incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1028 to Post-Effective Amendment No.4

so the Companys Registration Statement on Form 11 No.333 153135

10.16 Promissory Note by and between BEMT Augusta LI.C and Blsseroek Special Opportunity Income Fund It LLC dated September 2010 incorporated by reference to

Exbihit 1029 to Post Effective Amendment No.4 to the Companys Registration Statement on FormS 11 No.333-153135

10.17 Pledge and Security Agreement by and between BEMT Augusta LLC and Bluerock Special Opportunity
Income Fund 11 LLC dated September 12010 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.30 to Post-Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form II No 333 153135

10.18 Multifamily Note by and between BSF/BR Augnsta LLC and CWCapitai dated September 12010 incorporated by reference to Extsibit 10.31 to Post Effective Amendment

No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form ii No.333 153135

10.19 Property Management Agreement by and between 8SF St Andrews LW and Hawthorne Residential Partners Inc dated as of September 72010 incorporated by reference

to Exhibit tO.32 to Post-Effective Amendment No.4 to the Companys Registration Statement on FormS 11 No.333-153135

tO20 Limited Liability Company/Joint Venture Agreement of Bell BR Hillsboro Village JV LLC dated as of September 30 2010 incorporated by reference to Extaibit 1033 to Post

Effective Amendment No.4 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-li No 333 153135

1021 Promissory Note by and between BEMT Hillsboro
Village LLC and Bluerock Special Opportunity Inrome Fund 11 LLC dated

September 30 2010 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.34 to Post-Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 11 No.333 153135

1022 Pledge and Security Agreement by and between BEMT Hiisboto Village LLC and Blueroek Special Opportunity Income Fund It LLC dated September 30 2010

incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 to Post-Effective Amendment No.4 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form it No 333 153135

1023 Multifamily Deed of Trust by and between Bell BR Hillsbero Village IV LLC and CBRE Multifamily Capital Inc dated September 30 2010 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 1027 to Post-Effective Amendment No.4 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form S-li No 333-153135

10.24 Property Management Agreement by and between Belt BR iiitisboro Village JV LLC and Bell Partners Inc dated as of September 27 2010 incorporated by reference to

Exhibit 1027 to Post Effective Amendment No.4 to the Companys Registration Statement on Form 11 No 333-153t35
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1025 Deed of Trust Note between BR Creekside LLC and Walker Dunlop LLC incorporated by reference to Exbibit 1038 to the Companys Current Report on Form 8-K filed

on October 202010

1026 Promissory Note between BEMT Mesdowmont LLC and Bluerock Special Opportunity tncome Fand II dated ss of January 20 2011 incorporated by reference to Exbibit

10.1 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 26 20t

1027 Pledge
and Security Agreement between BEMT Meadowmont LLC and Bluerock Special Opportunity Income Fand II dated as of Janasry 20 2011 incorporated by

reference to Exhibit 10.2 to the Registrants Current Report on Form 8-K filed on January 262011

21.t List of Subsidiaries incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to Pre Effective Amendment No ito Fost Effective Amendment No to the Companys Registration Statement

onFormS ltNn.333 153135

31.1 Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act

312 Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to Section 302 of the Sacbanes Oxley Act

32.1 Certification nf Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer pursuant to 18 U.S.C 1350 as created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act
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EXHIBIT 31.1

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

lR.RaminKamfarcertify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10 of Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report does not contain any untrue ttatement of material fact or omit to state material fact necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial stalements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects the financial condition results of operations and cash

flows of the registrant ss of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and tare responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and
procedures as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e and

internal control over financial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rales 13a-1Sf and lId-i 51 for the registrant and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant inaluding its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly dunng the penod in which this report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial
reporting

and the preparation of financial statemenls for external purposes in accordance with genernlly accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the regiatrants ditelosurea controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter

in the ease of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal controls over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

registrants Board of Directors or persons performing the equivalent functions

All aignificant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or opemtion of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process sommarize and report fmancial information and

Any fmud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the registrants intemal control over financial reporting

DATE March 312011 /s/R.RaminKamfar

Ramin Kamfar

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Prinripal Executivr Officer
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EXHIBIT 31.2

CERTIFICATION OF CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

Jerold Novack certify that

have reviewed this annual report on Form 10 of Bluerock Enhanced
Multifamily Trust Inc

Based on my knowledge this report
does not contain

any
untrue statement of material fact or omit to state material fact

necessary to make the statements made in light of the circumstances under

which such statements were made not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report

Based on my knowledge the financial statements and other financial information included in this report fairly present in all material respects
the financial condition results of operations

and cash

flows of the registrant as of and for the periods presented in this report

The registrants other certifying officer and are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures as defined in Exchange Art Rules 13a-15e and 15d 15e and

internal control over fmancial reporting as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13a 15W and tsd-15f for the
registrant

and have

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision to ensure that material information relating to the

registrant including its consolidated subsidiaries is made known to us by others within those entities particularly during the period in which this
report is being prepared

Designed such internal control over financial reporting or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our supervision to provide reasonable assurance regarding

the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrants disclosures controls and procedures and
presented

in this
report our conclusions about the effectiveness of the disclosure controls and

procedures as of the end of the period covered by this report bated on such evaluation and

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrants internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrants most recent fiscal quarter the registrants fourth fiscal quarter

in the case of an annual report that has materially affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the registrants internal controls over financial reporting and

The registrants other certifying officer and have disclosed based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting to the registrants auditors and the audit committee of

registrants Board of Directorn or persons performing the equivalent functions

All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to adversely affect the registrants ability to

record process summarize and report financial information and

Any fraud whether or not material that involves management or other employees who have significant role in the registrants internal control over financial reporting

DATE March31 2011 Is/ Jerold Novark

Jerold Novack

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer
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EXhIBIT 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO 18 U.S.C SECTION 1350 AS ADOPTED

PURSUANT TO SECTION 906 OF THE

SARBAIqES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

Pursuant to 18 U.S .C 1350 aa created by Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 the undersigned officers of Bluerock Enhanced Multifamily Trust Inc the Company hereby certify to such

officers knowledge that

The accompanying annual Report on Form 10K for the period ended December 312010 the Report Silly complies with the requirements of Section 13a or 15d as applicable of the

Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as amended and

ii The information contained in the Report fairly presents in all material respects the financial condition and results of operations of the Company

DATE March 312011 is Ramis Kansfar

Ramin Kanifar

Chief Executive Officer and Chairman of the Board

Principal Executive Officer

DATE March 312011 is Jerold Novack

Jerold Novaek

Chief Financial Officer

Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting Officer

signed original of this written statement required by Section 906 has bcen provided to the Company and will be retained by the Company and fumished to the Securities and Exchange Cormnission or its

staff upon request

The foregoing certification is being furnished an exhibit to the Report pursuant to Item 601b32 of Regulation S-K and Section 906 of the Sarbanes Oxley Act of 2002 and accordingly is not being

filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission as part of the Report and is not lobe incorporated by reference into any filing of the Company under the Securities Act of 1933 or the Securitins

Exchange Act of 1934 whether made before or afler the date of the Report irrespective of any general incorporation language contained in such filing
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